
CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
MONDAY, AUGUST 22, 2022 7:00P.M.  

Forthosewishing tolisten livetothemeeting, pleasegotoci.shorewood.mn.us/current_meeting for
themeeting link. Contact thecityat952.960.7900during regular business hourswithquestions.  

AGENDA

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL MEETING

A. PledgeofAllegiance

B. RollCall
MayorLabadie___  

Siakel___  
Johnson___  

Callies___  
Gorham___  

C. ReviewandAdoptAgenda
Attachments

2. CONSENT AGENDA TheConsentAgendaisaseriesofactionswhicharebeingconsideredforadoptionthisevening
underasinglemotion.  Theseitemshavebeenreviewedbycitycouncilandcitystaffandthereshallbenofurtherdiscussionbythe
counciltonightontheConsentAgendaitems.   Anycouncilmemberormemberofcitystaffmayrequestthatanitemberemovedfrom
theConsentAgendaforseparateconsiderationordiscussion.  Ifthereareanybriefconcernsorquestionsbycouncil, wecananswer
thosenow.  

Motion toapprove itemsontheConsent Agenda & AdoptResolutions Therein:  

A. CityCouncil Regular Meeting Minutes ofAugust8, 2022 Minutes

B. Approval oftheVerifiedClaimsList ClaimsList

C. Accept Quote for2022Catch BasinandCulvert Project, CityEngineer Memo
CityProject22-04 Resolution 22-073

D. Accept Final Improvement forBeverly Drive & CajedLane CityEngineer Memo
Drainage Improvements, CityProject20-03 Resolution 22-074

E. Accept Final Improvements forGlenRoad/AmleeRoad/ CityEngineer Memo
Manitou LaneStreetReconstruction andUtilityProject, Resolution 22-075
CityProject18-08

F. Approve Vacation ofaPortionofFireLane1toSetProperty Line Planning Director Memo
Location: 4580Enchanted PointatFireLane1 Resolution 22-068

G. Approve Agreement withChristmas LakeAssociation for Director ofPublicWorksMemo
Improvements totheChristmas LakePublicAccess Resolution 22-076

H. Accept QuoteforSecurity Upgrades tothe DirectorofPublic WorksMemo
Christmas LakePublicAccess Resolution 22-077



CITYCOUNCILREGULARMEETINGAGENDA
Page2

I. Accept QuoteandAwardContract forOneReplacement Director ofPublicWorksMemo
2000GallonTanker Truck

3. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR Thisisanopportunityformembersofthepublictobringanitem, whichisnoton
tonight'sagenda, totheattentionofthemayorandcouncil. Whenyouarerecognized, pleaseraiseyourhandorusetheraiseyour
handfeature.  Pleaseidentifyyourselfbyyourfirstandlastnameandyouraddressfortherecord.  Afterthisintroduction, pleaselimit
yourcommentstothreeminutes.  Noactionwillbetakenbythecouncilonthismatter. Themayororcouncilmayrequestthatstaff
placethismatteronafutureagendaoraskstafftoaddressitduringItem10. StaffReports. (NoCouncil Actionwillbetaken) 

4. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS

A. Highway 7SafetyAuditPresentation, MnDOT

B. ChiefofPolice, BrianTholen 2023Budget Presentation SLMPD Proposed Budget

C. FireChief, CurtMackey 2023Budget Excelsior FireDistrict Proposed Budget
Presentation

5. PUBLIC HEARING

A. Request forRezoning, PUDconcept/development stage Planning Director Memo
andPreliminary PlatforMapleShores
Location:  20430Radisson RoadandAdjacent VacantLots
Applicant:  Chamberlain Capital, LLC.    

6. PARKS

A. ReportbyCommissioner HeinzonAugust16, 2022ParkCommission Minutes
Meeting

7. PLANNING

A. ReportbyCommissioner RiedelonAugust2, 2022Meeting Minutes

B. Request forRezoning, PUDconcept/development stage Planning Director Memo
andPreliminary PlatforMapleShores Ordinance 591
Location:  20430Radisson RoadandAdjacent VacantLots Resolution 22-078
Applicant:  Chamberlain Capital, LLC.  Resolution 22-079

C. Cooperative Housing Development Planning Director Memo
Applicant: Lifestyle Communities
Location: 24250and24320Smithtown Road

8. ENGINEERING/ PUBLIC WORKS

9. GENERAL/NEW BUSINESS

A. Approve Proposed 2023SLMPDBudget

B. Approve Proposed 2023Excelsior FireDistrict Budget



CITYCOUNCILREGULARMEETINGAGENDA
Page3

10. STAFF AND COUNCIL REPORTS

A. Staff

1. Primary Election andCandidate FilingUpdate CityClerk/HRDirector Memo

2. FallShredEvent Communications/Recycling Coordinator Memo

B. MayorandCityCouncil

11. ADJOURN



2A

CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
MONDAY, AUGUST 8, 2022 7:00P.M.  

MINUTES

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

Councilmember Siakelcalled themeeting toorderat7:00P.M.  Sheexplained thatMayorLabadie
wasonvacation andCouncilmember Johnson, whoistheActingMayor, wasoutsickthisevening
whichmeant thattheCouncil wouldneedtovoteforsomeone elsetoserveasActingMayor just
forthemeeting.   

Callies moved, Gorham seconded, appointing Councilmember Siakel toserve as
Temporary Acting Mayor.  All infavor, motion passed.     

PLEDGE OFALLEGIANCE

A. Roll Call

Present.  Councilmembers Siakel, Gorham, andCallies; Interim CityAdministrator Shukle;  
CityClerk/HRDirector Thone; Finance Director Rigdon; Planning Director Darling;  
Director ofPublic WorksBrown; and, CityEngineer Budde

Absent: MayorLabadieandCouncilmember Johnson

B. Review Agenda

Gorham moved, Siakel seconded, approving theagenda aspresented.   All infavor, motion
passed.   

2. CONSENT AGENDA

Temporary ActingMayorSiakelexplained thatItemF. wasduetoParkandRecreation Director
TwilaGrout retiring.  Shestated thatParkandRecreation Director Grouthasdoneafantastic job
serving intheCityandreviewed hervarious rolesdatingbackto1997.  Shestated thatMs. Grout
willbemissed andwanted tomakesurethatherworkanddedication received attention.     

Callies moved, Gorham seconded, Approving theMotions Contained ontheConsent
Agenda and Adopting theResolutions Therein.    

A. City Council Regular Meeting Minutes ofJuly 25, 2022

B. Approval of theVerified Claims List

C. Continue Review – Vacation ofaPortion ofFire Lane 1toSet Property Line
Location:  4580 Enchanted Point

D. Accept Final Improvements forFreeman Park Baseball Field Drainage,   
Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 22-070, “AResolution toAccept Final



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 8, 2022
Page 2of7

Improvements fortheFreeman Park Drainage Improvements Project, City
Project 20-10”  

E. Extension ofVariance Approval:  Location: 23320 Park Street, Applicant:   
Kimberly Poe, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 22-071, “AResolution Approving
anExtension foraVariance totheSide Yard Setback forProperty Located at
23320 Park Street.”   

F. Accept Resignation ofPark and Recreation Director andAuthorize
Advertisement forPosition

G. Approve Hiring Public Works LEO/Shop Technician

H. Accept Quote forBadger Park Cameras and Intrusion System

All infavor, motion passed.   

3. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR

Richard Mann,25545BirchBluffRoad notedthathiscomments were related tothecontinued
discussion ofroadwidening andstormwater mains forBirchBluffRoad.  Hestated thathehas
donealotofresearch andwould likeitknown fortherecord thattheconstituents oftheroadthat
hehasspoken toareagainst thewidening oftheroadway butwereinfavorofhavingwater and
sewerbrought in.  Heexplained that theproposed widening iscausingalotofheartburn from
bothanaesthetic pointofviewandbecause ofafearofincreased speed.  Hestated thatifthings
continue tomoveforward hewouldaskthattheCitylookintopermanent speedbumps toslow
thetrafficdown.  Hestated thathefeelsthe information relatedtothepre-scopepaperdidnot
haveanything thatwouldaffect thewetlands andfeels itneeds tobestudied further.  Hestated
thathewouldliketohearfromCityEngineer Buddeatsomepoint asfarastheenvironmental
impacts related towidthandwhatstatutes arebeingapplied toensure thattheroadneeds togo
to26feetrather thanitscurrent statusandwidth.  Hereiterated thatthemajority ofpeoplealong
BirchBluffRoadthathehasspoken todonotwishtohavetheroadwidened.  

GregLarson, 25535Orchard Circle, askedabout theSmithtown Pondsconstruction plansrelated
totreepreservation.  Hestated thatitappears thatmostofthetreesthatweresupposed tobe
preserved havebeenwhacked andaskedfordetailsonthose decisions.   

Temporary ActingMayor Siakelstated thatMatters fromtheFloor isdesigned asanopportunity
fortheCouncil tolisten tofeedback andquestions fromtheresidents.   

Mr. Larson askedwhatforumwasavailable totheresidents toactually address theCouncil and
getquestions answered.    

Temporary ActingMayorSiakel askedifMr. Larsonhadcontacted Citystaffbecause manytimes
theycanaddress theconcerns fromtheresidents.  Shestated thatshedoesnotknowifanyone
ontheCouncil hasthespecific information available atthemoment inordertoanswer Mr.  
Larson’squestion related totreepreservation.    

Mr. Larson askedifanyonepresent hadinformation onwhyallthetrees inthetreepreservation
planfortheSmithtown Pondprojecthavebeenwhacked andaregone.  Hestatedthatifanyone



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 8, 2022
Page 3of7

ontheCouncil doubts whatheissayinghesuggested thattheymeet tomorrow morning at10:00
a.m. todoawalk-throughofthearea.    

CityEngineer Buddestated thatthetreepreservation planthatMr. Larson isreferring toisbased
offaveryearlyconcept.  Hestated thatastheywent through thepermitting process, oneofthe
majorobstacles waswiththeArmyCorpsofEngineers whichmeantsomeadjustments needed
tobemadetothegrading onthesite inordertobeabletoaddress thedrainage concerns.  He
stated thatpartofthoseadjustments werethatsomeofthetreesthattheyhadoriginally wanted
topreserve werenotabletobepreserved.  Hestated that theyarestillplanning toreplace many
ofthosetreesandalsoplantoexceed thereplacement counts thattheyaresupposed tomeet
basedontheTreePreservation Policy. Hereiterated thatthedocument Mr. Larson wasreferring
towasaveryearlyconcept andnotthefinalplans.    

Mr. Larson stated thathepulled thisdocument offtheCity’swebsite thismorning.    

Temporary ActingMayorSiakel thanked Mr. Larson forbringing hisconcerns totheattentionof
theCouncil andassured himthattheCouncil woulddirectstaff tolookintotheissuesMr. Larson
hadraised.    

Mr. Larson stated thatduring theJune13, 2022CityCouncil meeting whentheCouncil had
discussed theBirchBluffRoadplantherewasastatement madethatmostofthetrees impacted
arescrubtreesandnotofgoodquality.  Heaskedabout thedefinition ofa ‘scrub’ tree.    

Temporary ActingMayorSiakelstated thatscrubtreesarethelittlesaplings thathavegrownup
alongBirchBluffRoad.  Shestated thatshebelieves thattherewereonlyafewtreesthatwere
impacted which mayevenbelessnowthattheyarenotputting inasidewalk.  

Mr. Larson stated thathehashadarequest inforthelastsixweekstofindouthowmanytrees
andwhich treeswillberemoved aspartofthisproject butnotedthathehadnotyetreceived a
response yet.    

Temporary ActingMayorSiakelstatedthatshewasn’tsuredetails related towhich treeswould
beremoved hadbeendetermined yet.    

CityEngineer Buddestated thatthiswascorrect because theyhadnotyetcompleted thefinal
designnorhavetheycompleted alloftheireasement negotiations yet.  Hestated thattheywill
notknowthis information until thosethingsaredoneandmanytimestheydonotknowthis
information untiltheproject begins.  Heexplained thatoftentimes thereareproperty owners who
wanttheCitytoremove treesalongthecorridor thatareclosetheproperty lineorontheproperty
line, which theCitywilldo.  

Mr. Larson stated thatoneofthestatedgoals forSmithtown Pondswastopreservation and
restoration oftreesandhabitatandaskedifthatremained agoal.  

Temporary ActingMayorSiakel thanked Mr. Larson forhiscomments andaskediftherewas
anybody on-linethatwould liketoaddress theCouncil.   

AlanYelsey, 26335PeachCircle, notedthatCityEngineer Budde hadmadeacomment in
response toMr. Larson thatthetreeswouldbe ‘replaced’ andstatedhisopinion that theCity
wouldnot ‘replace’ athirty foottreethatwouldhaveawidthofthreefeet.  Hestated thattheplans



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 8, 2022
Page 4of7

destroy mature treesandtheywillnothavethembackforanother fortyorfiftyyears, whichtohim
wouldnotbeconsidered ‘replacement’.  Hestated thatitappears asthough theCouncil refuses
tohavediscussion withtheresidents onallofthese matters nordothey providea forumfor
discussion.  Hestated thatthecitizensofShorewood shouldnottolerateaformatwhere there
canbenodiscussion with theCityCouncil andstaff inapublic forumlikethis.  Hestated thathe
feelstheCityneeds tocreatesomekindofformatwherethat ispossible.  Hestated thathis
remaining comments arerelated totheillegalities thattheCityisinvolved withthatiftheyarenot
addressed canresult inmalfeasance andnotedthattheCouncil couldbeheldaccountable.  He
stated thatheandMr. Larson arenotattacking theCouncil.  Hestatedthattheillegalities inthe
Smithtown Pondsproject arethattherearenoconstruction zonesandprotected treeareas
marked havehadtreesremoved; siltfenceswerenotplaced around theproperty forthefirstthree
weeksoftheproject anddidnotprotect thecreek; agravestone wasdiscovered ontheproperty
whichwasnotpreserved andprotected inthemanner prescribed bylawwithconstruction
continuing.  Hestated thathewanted tomakesurethat theCouncil wasaware thatthereneeds
tobeconsequences fortheCitydoingillegalactsand, sincetheydonotappear toberegulating
themselves, inhisopinion, itisarealproblem.    

Temporary ActingMayorSiakelnotedthatlegalcounselwasnotpresent tonight tocomment on
someoftheseconcerns raisedbyMr. YelseysosheaskedstafftomakesurethatCityAttorney
Shepherd followsuponthese concerns.    

4. PUBLIC HEARING

5. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS

A. Proclamation ofSupport forVeterans Celebration
Chaska Area Fishing with Friends
Veteran’sCelebration Fishing and BBQ

Temporary ActingMayorSiakel readaloudaproclamation inrecognition oftheChaska Area
Fishing withFriends Veteran’sCelebration.    

6. PARKS

A. Authorize Preparation ofPlans and Specifications forFreeman Park Trail
Improvement, City Project 22-05

CityEngineer Buddeexplained thattheThreeRiversParkDistrict hadapproached theCityabout
addinganewtrailheadconnection withinFreeman Park.  Hestated thatthreealternative routes
werediscussed ataParkCommission meeting inJulyof2021andtheCouncil wasupdated on
theirrecommendation inAugustof2021.  Hestated thatstaffhascontinued discussions with the
ThreeRiversParkDistrict who haveaskedthattheCitytaketheleadonthedesignand
administration oftheproject.  Henoted thattheplanisforittobecombined withotherplanned
trailrehabilitation effortsproposed bytheCitywithintheParkwhichhasbeenincluded intheCIP
for2023.  Heexplained thatthetrailheadconnection willbeatenfootwidetrailfromtheexisting
LakeMinnetonka Regional Trail tothesouthern parking lotnearEureka Road. Henotedthatin
thefuture therewillbeajointpowers agreement withtheThreeRiversParkDistrict toclarify the
costsharing andmaintenance responsibilities. Heexplained thattheCityhadbudgeted $200,000
andThreeRiversParkDistrict hadbudgeted $231,000 butanticipates that thisnumber may
change for2023. HenotedthatThreeRivers ParkDistrict hasagreed topayfortheengineering



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 8, 2022
Page 5of7

efforts.  Staff recommends thattheCouncil authorize preparation offinalplansandspecifications
forthisproject.  Hestated thatoncetheplansarefiftypercent completed, theywillfollowupwith
theParks Commission toseektheircomments ontheplans.    

Councilmember Gorham askedforarefresher ontheoptions thatwereconsidered andthe
preferred option location.    

CityEngineer Buddenotedthatthelocation washighlighted withthereddashed lineonthe
drawings andnotedthatithugsthetreelinetothenorthandisnorthofthesporting fields.    

Councilmember Gorham askediftheplanswillaffect theoutfield fence.    

CityEngineer Buddestated thathedidnotbelieveso, butthosedetailsareyettobedetermined.    

Temporary ActingMayorSiakelgaveabriefoverview ofthepastpossibility oftheCityenteringa
costsharing improvement toFreeman Parkandpresented thethreeoptions thatwereconsidered
lastyear.  Shestated thatshethinks thisisaniceprojectandcreates trailsandwalkability forthe
residents.  Shestated thatshefeelstheCityshouldbethankful thattheThreeRiversParkDistrict
approached theCityandasked themtoparticipate inthisproject.    

Councilmember Callies statedthattheCityhasbeendiscussing thisforalongtimeandfeelsit
shouldmoveforward because itwillbeanimprovement.    

Gorham moved, Siakel seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 22-072, “AResolution to
Authorize Preparation ofFinal Plans and Specifications for theFreeman Park Trail
Improvements Project, City Project 22-05”. All infavor, motion passed.  

7. PLANNING

8. ENGINEERING/ PUBLIC WORKS

9. GENERAL/NEW BUSINESS

10. STAFF AND COUNCIL REPORTS

A. Administrator andStaff

InterimCityAdministrator Shukle stated thatBakerTillyhadreceived fiftyapplications fortheCity
Administrator position andarecurrently intheprocess ofnarrowing theprospective listdownto
abouteighteen candidates.  Hestated thatoncethose candidates arenarrowed down, the
pertinent materials willbemadeavailable totheCouncil forreview.  Hestated thatBakerTilly
hasasked theCouncil totakealookatthismaterial andthendetermine thefivecandidates that
theywould liketointerview.    

Councilmember Gorham askediftheCouncil wasexpected torankthecandidates ontheirown
orifitwould takeplaceduringaworkshop discussion.   

InterimCityAdministrator Shukle stated that theideawouldbethatheCouncil rankthemontheir
ownindividually andthendiscuss theirchoices ataCouncil meeting.  Hestated thatthethought
wasthathopefully theCouncil wouldbeabletocometoaconsensus onwhich fivecandidates



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 8, 2022
Page 6of7

shouldbeinterviewed.  Hestated that theycouldschedule aspecial Council meetingorwork
session todiscuss thisbutnotedthattheagenda fortheCouncil WorkSession onAugust22,  
2022isalready full.   

Temporary ActingMayor Siakelstated thatshewouldsupport aspecial meeting forthis
discussion because shedoesnotwantittobearushed decision.    

There was aConsensus oftheCouncil tohold aspecial meeting inorder todiscussion the
City Administrator candidates.    

Interim CityAdministrator Shukle statedthathewanted tomakesure thatnottoomuch timeis
wasted inthisprocess because thecandidates maybeconsidering otherpositions.   Hewillshare
thisinformation withMayorLabadie andCouncilmember Johnson andtrytogetameeting
scheduled assoonaspossible.     

CityEngineer Buddestated thattheGrant Steetprojectwillbepaved today.  Hestated thatover
thelastweekthecontractor made theconnection ontheShorewood Oaksproject whichhadthe
sumppumps running overintothe pipe.  Hestated thatisprettymuchfunctioning andthe
drainage streams areseparate but willultimately befullyworking onceSmithtown Ponds is
excavated. Hestated thatfortheSmithtown Pondsproject theyhavehadboththeMinnesota
Pollution Control Agency andtheMinnehaha CreekWatershed outtodositeinspections which
havepassed, andnoconcerns wereraised.  Hestated thatheisnotconcerned aboutanyofthe
silt fencingorerosion controlonthisproject.  Hestatedthatinrelation totheheadstone thatwas
encountered, assoonastheyknewabout it, theirarcheologist wasonsiteanddidsomeadditional
research andalsohadcontact with theStatearcheologist.  Hestated thattheyreceived approval
tokeepmovingaheadwithinafewdaysofidentifying it.  Hestated thatthiswaspurelyonthe
piecenorthofthetrailwherenoexcavation hasyethappened.  Hestated thattheCityhasmet
alltherequirements anddonetheirduediligence onthatissue.  Hestated thatitendedupbeing
aredundant gravestone thathadbeenre-engraved andplaced inSt. Cloud.  Hestated that
essentially thegravestone wasobsolete andwasgivenbacktotheproperty owner.  Henoted
thatMr. Yelsey hadreceived ane-mailshortlyafterthisincidenthappened, sohewasaware that
theCitywaslooking intothisissue.    

Planning Director Darlingstated thatthePesticide Management Auditing Planwillbesenttothe
ParksCommission withtheirnextmeeting packet.  Sheexplained thattheywillhaveafullmonth
toreview theinformation andwillbeabletodiscuss details withtheconsultant attheSeptember
13, 2022meeting.  Shenotedthatthepublicwouldbewelcomed atthatmeeting.      

B. Mayor and City Council

Councilmember Gorham stated thathewouldsecond thesentiment shared byTemporary Acting
MayorSiakel regarding ParksandRecreation Director Groutbecause shewilldefinitely be
missed.    

11. ADJOURN

Gorham moved, Callies seconded, Adjourning theCity Council Regular Meeting ofAugust
8, 2022, at7:36P.M.  All infavor, motion passed.   



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 8, 2022
Page 7of7

ATTEST:             
Debbie Siakel, Acting Mayor

Sandie Thone, City Clerk















































CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION22-073

ARESOLUTIONAWARDINGTHE2022CATCHBASIN & CULVERT
REPAIRCONTRACT, CITYPROJECT22-04

WHEREAS, quotes forthe2022CatchBasin & Culvert Repair & Replacement
Improvements Project werereceived onAugust 16, 2022opened andtabulated
according tolaw, withthefollowing quotes received:  

Quote AmountContractor
Schneider Excavating $ 68,061.50
Bituminous Roadways $ 74,845.00
Valley Paving $ 81,565.00
Kusske Construction $ 83,380.00
Minger Construction $ 84,135.50

WHEREAS, Citystaff recommends awardofthe2022CatchBasin & Culvert Repair &  
Replacement Improvements toSchneider Excavating & Grading, Inc. whoisthelowest
responsible bidder; and

WHEREAS, Schneider Excavation & Grading, Inc. isaresponsible andresponsive
contractor, thathascompleted projects ofsimilar sizeandscope successfully; and

NOWTHEREFORE, ITRESOLVED: bytheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood the
CityClerk ishereby authorized anddirected toenter intoacontract withSchneider
Excavating & Grading, Inc. basedonthelowest quoteamount of $68,061.50inthe
nameoftheCityofShorewood forthe2022Catch Basin & Culvert Repair &  
Replacement Improvements Project according totheplansandspecifications onfilein
theofficeoftheCityClerk.  

ndADOPTED BYTHE CITY COUNCIL OFTHE CITY OF SHOREWOOD this22 dayof
August, 2022.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor
Attest:  

SandieThone, CityClerk













CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION22-074

ARESOLUTIONACEEPTINGFINALIMPROVEMENTSFORTHE
BEVERLYDRIVEANDCAJEDLANEDRAINAGEIMPROVEMENTSPROJECT;  

CITYPROJECT20-03

thWHEREAS, On, July27, 2020, theShorewood CityCouncil awarded aContract to
G.F. Jedlicki, Inc., fortheBeverly DriveandCajedLaneDrainage Improvement Project;  
and

WHEREAS, G.F. Jedlicki, Inc. hascompleted allworkinaccordance withtheawarded
contract; and

WHEREAS, G.F. Jedlicki, Inc. isrequesting finalpayment andacceptance forthework;  
and

WHEREAS, Staffhasreviewed theestimate, verified quantities, verified completed
punch listitems, received allapplicable closeoutdocuments fromthecontractor, and
recommends finalpayment andacceptance oftheproject toG.F. Jedlicki, Inc.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED: theCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood
hereby accepts theimprovements andauthorizes finalpayment toG.F. Jedlicki, Inc., for
theBeverly DriveandCajedLaneDrainage Improvement Project according totheplans
andspecifications onfileintheofficeoftheCityClerk.  

ndADOPTED BYTHE CITY COUNCIL OFTHE CITY OF SHOREWOOD this22 dayof
August, 2022.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor

Attest:  

SandieThone, CityClerk





CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION22-075

ARESOLUTIONFORACCEPTANCEOFFINALIMPROVEMENTSFORTHEGLEN
ROAD, MANITOULANE, ANDAMLEEROADSTREETIMPROVEMENTS,  

CITYPROJECT18-08

WHEREAS, OnFebruary 8, 2021, theCityCouncil awarded acontract toWMMueller &  
Sons, Inc., fortheGlenRoad, Manitou Lane, andAmlee RoadStreet Improvement
Project; and

WHEREAS, WMMueller & Sons, Inc. hascompleted allworkinaccordance withthe
awarded contract; and

WHEREAS, WMMueller & Sons, Inc. isrequesting acceptance forthework; and

WHEREAS, theCityEngineer hasreviewed said Improvement andfound ittobein
general conformance totheapproved plansandspecifications; and

WHEREAS, Staffhasreviewed theestimate, verified quantities, received thewarranty
bond, IC-134s, consent ofsurety, andrecommends acceptance oftheproject toWM
Mueller & Sons, Inc.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED: theCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood
hereby accepts final Improvements andauthorizes finalpayment toWMMueller & Sons
fortheGlenRoad, Manitou Lane, andAmlee RoadStreet Improvements according to
theplansandspecifications onfileintheofficeoftheCityClerk.  

ndADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OFTHE CITY OF SHOREWOOD this22 dayof
August, 2022.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor

Attest:  

SandieThone, CityClerk



















2G
MEETING

TYPE
Regular
Meeting

CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title/Subject:  ApproveAResolutionAcceptingAgreementWiththe
ChristmasLakeAssociationforImprovementstothe
ChristmasLakePublicAccess

Meeting Date: Monday August 22, 2022
Prepared by:  LarryBrown, Director ofPublic Works
Reviewed by:  EdShukle, Interim CityAdministrator
Attachments:  SiteLocationMap, ProposalbyGSSC, SignLayout, Sign

LocationMap, AgreementandResolution

Background:  TheChristmas LakeAssociation (CLA) hadpreviously approached city
staff requesting consideration ofimprovements totheChristmas LakePublic Access.  
Attachment 1isasitelocation map

Theimprovements requested include thefollowing:  

1. Upgrading theexisting security camera andadding twoadditional security
cameras tothesite.  

2. Posting ofsignage located eastandwestoftheintersection ofMerryLaneand
thesoutherly frontage roadofStateHighway 7.  

3. TheCitywouldbethehostforlivevideo broadcast ofparking conditions.    

Currently, theChristmas LakePublic Access hasonecamera thatwasinstalled bythe
CLAthatisfedbyaMediacom forbroadcast.  Therehavebeen issues withthecurrent
installation tomaintain anadequate andstable video feed.  Therefore, itisdesired to
upgrade thecamera andbroadcast ofthissystem.    

Inaddition toupgrading thecurrent camera, bothstaffandrepresentatives oftheCLA
agreed that itisprudent toaddtwoadditional cameras toprovide abettervisualofthe
siteandboatramp, forsecurity purposes, andtoenablealivebroadcast forpotential
visitors ofthesitetobeabletomonitor whatparking spotsareavailable foruse, orifthe
stieisatcapacity priortoentering thesite.  Attachment 3isadiagram indicting the
location andviewing anglesoftheproposed cameras.  Camera feedswouldbe
recorded cyclically onathirty-daybasis.    

Representatives ofCLAhaveagreed topayforfiftypercent ofthecamera upgrade and
installation costs.  Asproposed, theremaining fiftypercent andongoing operating costs
wouldbebornebythecity.    

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



Forthecamera upgrade, staffhassolicited aproposal fromthecity’scurrent security
andvideoprovider, GSSC.  Total costs fortheinstallation are $15,336.36 (without sales
tax).  Therefore, eachparty totheagreement willpaytheinitialportion intheamount of
7,668.18.  

Alsodiscussed wasproposed signage tothesite.  Asproposed, signswouldbe
installed botheastandwestoftheintersection ofMerryLanewiththesoutherly frontage
roadtoState Highway 7.  Attachment 3isadiagram ofthesignlayoutwithQRcode
andwebsite address totheCityofShorewood’swebsite.  This linkbrings theusertothe
regulations pageandanadditional submenu toviewliveparking conditions.   

Attachment 4isasitediagram astotheproposed location ofthesigns. Itisnoted that
theeasterly signmustbelocatedafairdistance eastoftheintersection, duetospace
limitations.  Apermit fromMNDOT willberequired forinstallation ofthissign, aswell.   

Attachment 5istheproposed agreement.  Asnoted, theCLAhasagreed topayfifty
percent oftheinstallation costs fortheimprovements.  Theremaining fiftypercent,  
ongoing operational costsandwebsite maintenance isbornebythecity.  

FinancialConsiderations:  Ifapproved, itisproposed thatthisinstallation befunded
fromtheParks Capital Improvement Program, asthepublicaccess isconsidered partof
theparksystem.  Ongoing operational costswould befunded fromtheParkOperating
budget.    

Recommendation/ActionRequested:. Staff isrecommending approval ofthe
Resolution thataccepts theagreement between theChristmas LakeAssociation and
theCityofShorewood forsiteimprovements totheChristmas LakePublic Access.  



































CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION22-076

ARESOLUTIONAPPROVINGAGREEMENTBETWEENTHECHRISTMASLAKE
ASSOCIATIONANDCITYOFSHOREWOODFORIMPROVEMENTSTOTHE

CHRISTMASLAKEBOATACCESS

WHEREAS, TheCityowns landwithPID35-117-23-13-9938, which islocated in
Hennepin County, andwhichservesastheboat launch andpublicaccess forChristmas
Lake; and

WHEREAS, TheChristmas LakeAssociation (“CLA”) forresidents livingonornearby
Christmas Lake, orthosewhowishtosupport thegoalsandpurposes ofthepublicboat
access; and

WHEREAS, TheCLAandcitystaffhaveworked together todevelop aplanfor
proposed improvements tosaidpublicaccess forsecurity andparking management;  
and

WHEREAS, TheCityofShorewood hasproposed acostsharing agreement forthe
installation ofsaidimprovements, attached hereto as “ExhibitA.”  

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED: theCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood
hereby accepts theproposed agreement between theChristmas LakeAssociation and
theCityofShorewood forshared costsfortheimprovements totheChristmas Lake
BoatAccess.   

ndADOPTED BYTHE CITY COUNCIL OFTHE CITY OF SHOREWOOD this22 dayof
August, 2022.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor

Attest:  

SandieThone, CityClerk







CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION22-077

ARESOLUTIONAWARDINGTHEQUOTEFORSECURITYIMPROVEMETSTOTHE
CHRISTMASLAKEPUBLICBOATACCESS

WHEREAS, Aquotewassolicited fromGSSC forinstallation ofcameras andvarious
network improvements fortheChristmas LakePublic BoatAccess; and

WHEREAS, OnthisdatetheCityofShorewood hasentered intoanagreement withthe
Christmas LakeAssociation, forcostsharing ofsaidimprovements; and

WHEREAS, GSSC hasprovided aquote thatisfoundacceptable bycitystaffandthe
Christmas LakeAssociation;  

NOWTHEREFORE, ITRESOLVED: thatthequoteprovided byGSSC intheamountof
15,336.36, withongoing costsof $90.00 (without taxes), ishereby approved.  

ndADOPTED BYTHE CITY COUNCIL OFTHE CITY OF SHOREWOOD this22 dayof
August, 2022.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor
Attest:  

SandieThone, CityClerk

























































4CExcelsiorFireDistrict
2023BUDGET

2023OVERVIEW

Inpreparing the2023budget, version4, thefollowingupdates/changeswereincorporated intothe
draft.  

Operations andBuildingbudget increaseof4% total.  
Updatedspreadsheet sothatalloperating expenses werecalculated basedupondetailed
schedules contained in “2023SalaryBenefits” and “2023Supplies & Other” tabs.  
AllPERA, FICAandMedicare expenses baseduponformulasembedded inspreadsheet.  
2022actualupdatedtoincludeincomeandexpenses throughJune.  
Endofyear2021balanceis $341962, or28.15% ofoperating budget.  

o Reserveshigherthanneeded.  

2023CHANGES
INCREASED overnightdutycrewstipendonFridayandSaturdaynights from $80pernightto
100. Increased weekday overnightdutycrewstipendfrom $60pernightto $80pernight.  

INCREASED allpart-time, firefighter hourlywagesby13.79% effective1/1/2023. $14.07to
16.00perhour. Allfull-timestaff5% annual increasestartingon01/01/2023.  

FundedCapitalEquipment purchases supportvehicle leaseprogramandEngine11lease
payment. Budget increase121.7%  
FundedBuilding Improvement Fund.  Budget increase0%  
AddedweekendDutyCrewdaytimestaffing2firefighters atbothstations. Budget increase5.8%  

2023KEYFINANCIAL NOTES
Assumptions:  

o Staffingpredictability andavailability willcontinuetochallenge theorganization
resulting intheneedtocontinuetoinvestinthedutycrewmodel.  

o Dutyofficerprogramwillcontinuetobeneededunlessoruntiladditional full-timestaff
canbeadded.  

o Estimated5-8% growthrateforalloperating expenses excepthealthinsurance which
wassetto10%  

o Organization complexityalongwithservicedemandsanddesiretoachieveabalanced
life/workforfirefighterswillresultintheadditionofsomefull-timepositionsbeginning
in2024.  

o Fundreserveswithatargetreserveof25% to28%.  
o Leverage theeliminationofmortgagedebtintoneededstaffing.  
o Continue firedistrictmarketing campaign (brandingvideo, interactive Facebook and

websitepages), recruitment andretention tomaintain paidoncallmodelmoving
forwardaugmented withcareerfireground andadministrative staffing.  



2024-2028CHANGES
Addingfinancialprojections tobuildingimprovement fundtoprovidefundingforroof
replacement, boilers, interiorconcrete flooring, andotherunanticipated building maintenance
costs.  
ADDfull-timeAssistantChiefeffective4/1/2024

o AssistFireChiefwithday-to-dayoperations
o Focusongrantfundingopportunities
o Staffandofficerdevelopment

ADDthree (3) full-timeDeputy/BattalionChiefsin2024/2025on24-hourshifts.  
o Significantly REDUCEloadoncurrentdutyofficerprogram
o INCREASE dailyfireground andresponseresources
o Createsuccession planningprogram
o Coverandsupervisedutycrewsduringtheday.  
o Manage: Training, Administration, anddailyoperations

REDUCED dutyofficercoverage fornon-full-timecoveragedaysforvacation/sicktimecoverage
only



5A

MEETING TYPE
RegularMeetingCityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title / Subject:   Rezoning, PUDConcept/Development StagePlan, Preliminary Plat
PublicHearingforMapleShores

Applicant: Chamberlain Capital, LLC.  
Location: 20430RadissonRoadandfouradjacentunaddressed parcels, allonthesouth

sideofHighway7

MeetingDate:     August22, 2022
Preparedby:    MarieDarling, PlanningDirector

ReviewDeadline: September 16, 2022

Attachments:     LocationMap
SitePlan

Pleasealsoseestaffreportandattachments forItem7Bonthisagendaandtheminutesfromthe
PlanningCommission meetingforItem7Aonthisagenda.  

Background:      
Theapplicant proposes todevelopthesubjectproperties intosevenlotsfornewsingleandtwo-family
homesandoneopenspaceoutlot.  Thisproposal includesthefollowing requests:   

Arezoning fromR-1AtoPlannedUnitDevelopment (PUD)  
stndAPUDconceptanddevelopment plan (the1 and2 stepsofthethree-stepprocess)  

stApreliminaryplat (the1 of2stepsinthesubdivision process)  

Recommendation:  Staffrecommend thattheCityCouncil openthesecondpublichearingonthisitem
andtakeandconsiderallofferedtestimony.  Actionontheitemwouldbelaterintheagendaasitem
7B.  ApublichearingwasalsoheldatthePlanningCommission.  Asummaryofthetestimony
received, andtheiractionisbelow.  

PlanningCommission PublicHearingandPublicTestimony:  
AttheirAugust2, 2022, meeting, thePlanningCommission votedunanimously torecommend
approvaloftheapplication basedonthefindingsthattherequestmetthestandardsforapproval,  
subjecttotheconditions listedinthestaffreport.  Theapplicantwaspresentatthemeeting and
spokeinfavoroftherequest.  Sixpeoplefromtheaudience requested tospeak.  Staffreceived no
writtencommentsorquestions.  Onecorrectionandthemajorityoftheissuesraisedaresummarized
below.    

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residentsqualitypublicservices, a
healthyenvironment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsoundfinancial
management througheffective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.   

S:\\Planning\\Planning Files\\Applications\\2022 Cases\\Maple Shores20430 Radisson Road\\CAFMemo public hearing.docx



Page2

Parking:    
Atthemeeting, staffindicated thatparkingisnotpermittedonRadissonRoad.  Furthersouthofthe
sitewhereRadissonRoadnarrows, parkingisrestricted.  Infrontofthesite, parkingisnotrestricted.   
Staffapologizes fortheerrorandanyconfusion thismayhavecaused.   

Theapplicant isproposing approximately fourtofivespacesforeachhome (two-threeinsideandtwo
outside) andanadditional fourparkingspacesforguests.  Thisexceedsordinance requirements.  

Density:  
Tworesidentsspokeregarding densityandtheincreaseofdensityontheproperty.  Bothwere
concerned abouttheimpactoftheadditional densityonthepropertyandonespeakerwantedto
makesurethatifthedeveloper coulddevelopatthatdensity, heshouldbeallowedtoaswell.  

Staffnotethattheproperty isguided inthecomprehensive planforlowdensityresidential (1-2units
peracre).  Theapplicantproposes toconstructadevelopment withtwounitstotheacre, whichis
conforming.  Tocalculatedensity, theapplicantmustusenetacres.  Thatmeanstheacresbelowthe
ordinaryhighwaterlevel (OHWL)  forLakeComoandthoseacresinthedelineated wetlandare
removed fromthecalculation.  Inaddition, theapplicant hashadtoshowthathisbuilding areasare
notwithinthesetbackfromtheOHWLofthelake, inabluffimpactarea, orwithinwetlandbuffers.   
Hehasshownthathehasareasoutsidethesefeatureswhichmeanshehasadequateproperty to
develop.  Thisisthesamemeansofcalculating density thatotherneighbors wouldhavetoshowas
well.    

Flexibility Requested:  
Aresidentstatedthattheflexibility requested wouldcreateaneighborhood thatisnotinkeeping
withthesurrounding neighborhood.  Staffbelieves thattheapplicantwasspeakingdirectlytothreeof
thefiverequestsforflexibility listedbelow  (thefulllistisincluded intheplanningcommission report
attachedtoItem7B):  

Theabilitytoconstructsingleandtwo-familyhomeswheretheR-1Azoningdistrictwouldrestrict
development tosingle-familyhomes.  

Staffrespond thatmost, butnotall, ofthehomesintheareaaresingle-familyhomes.  Tanglewood
hasthree-unittownhomes andislocatedonRadisson Roadabout1/3milewest. Barrington and
othertwin-homesarelocatednorthacrossHighway7.  Thisproperty isthefirstprivately-owned
propertyonthenorthsideofRadissonRoadanditisattheentrancetotheneighborhood.  Offering
avarietyofhousestylesinthecommunity isencouraged bytheComprehensive Plan, butitisa
policydecisionfortheCityCouncil todecideastheyreviewthedevelopment.  

Aprivatestreetservingallsevenhomeswherethesubdivision regulations allowforamaximum of
threehomestobeservedbyaprivatestreet.    
Reducedsetbacks toclusterthehomesitesalongtheprivatestreetandtobeclosertoRadisson
Road.  Thegaragesareproposed22-25feetfromtheprivatestreet insteadof65feetasrequired in
theR-1Adistrictanda35-footsetbackfromtheproperty lineabutting theRadissonRoadwherethe
R-1Azoningdistrict requires50feet.   



Page3

Staffrespondthatwiththeexceptionofthehomedirectlyabuttingthedevelopmentandthetwo
homesacrossthestreet, mosthomesintheareadonotmeetthefrontpropertysetbacksrequired
bythezoningdistrict.  Asaresult, stafffoundthatthereducedsetbackswouldnotbeoutof
characterfortheareaorforatownhousedevelopment.  Consequently, stafffindsthesetback
reductionfrom50feetto35feetfromtheRadissonRoadpublicright-of-waywouldnotseem
strangeoroutofcharacterwhenviewedfromthestreet.  TheCouncilcoulddecidetorequirethe
developertoincreasethesetbackfromRadissonRoadtobeconsistentwiththehomesimmediately
adjacent.    

TreeRemoval/Noise:   
Twoneighborsmentionedaconcernwithtreeremovalandoneindicatedthattheywereconcerned
thatthelossoftreeswouldincreasethenoisefromHighway7. Theapplicantisproposingtoremove
themajorityofthetreesfromtheeastandcentralpartofthedevelopmenttolowerthemiddleofthe
siteandtoconstructthepondandotherimprovements.  Thisactionwouldnecessitatessubstantial
treeremoval.  TheapplicanthasproposednotreeremovalintheMnDOTright-of-wayoronanyof
thesteeperslopesandonlyinthepublicright-or-wayasneededforthedriveway, utilitymainsorto
protectsitevisibilitythroughthecorridor.    

Oneoftheresidentsmentionedthatifthesiteweredevelopedforafewsingle-familyhomesinstead
ofthedevelopmentproposed, thatmoretreeswouldbesaved.  Staffisskepticalthatthiswouldbe
trueforanydevelopmentotherthanonesingle-familyhomeasthesitewouldstillrequiregradingfor
homeanddrivewayconnections.  Homesizesareincreasingandafterconstruction, newhomeowners
quicklyaddpools, sportcourts, partypatiosandotheramenitieswithadditionaltreeremovalafter
thefact, nottomentionongoingtreeremovalforaccessandviewcorridorstopublicwaters.     

Theapplicantrespondedthatbecausethehighwayisabovethecanopy, manyofthesitetreesthey
don’tprovidemuchnoiseprotectionforthehomesanyway.   

Staffaddsthattreesinthissettingwiththeplantingdensityshown, providelittlenoisereduction, but
doprovideaneededvisualbarrier.  Staffhasrequestedadditionaltreestobeplantedonthesiteand
includedconditionsintheapprovingresolutiontothiseffect.    

Ashborer:  ThePlanningCommissionersdebated
whethertorequirealltheashtreestobe
removedfromthepropertynowratherthanwait
untilaftertheborerimpactsthetreesonthe
site.  Staffindicatedthattheywouldgothrough
theinventorytodeterminehowmanyadditional
treesthiswouldimpact.  Onecommissioneralso
askedwhatthatdoestothereforestationratio.   
Stafffoundthatanadditional25treesnotedto
besavedareashtrees (indicatedinblueinthe
graphictotheright). Manyofthetreesarein
areasofthesitenotproposedtobedisturbed



Page4

andwouldbewithinthewetlandand/orbluffareas.  Staffwouldnormallynotrequiretreesthat
aren’texhibiting signsofdiseasetoberemoved intheremotestpartofthesite.  Iftheyarerequired
toberemovedbasedontheirpotential fordiseaseinthefuture, reforestation shouldnotberequired.   
Norshouldnewtreesberequiredtobeplantedinareaswhereitwillbedifficultorimpossible to
waterorotherwise maintain them.    

Oneoftheashtreesisinthepublicright-of-wayandthedeveloper’sarboristnotedthatitisleaning
overthestreet.  Staffbelievethatthattreeandtheadjacentmulberry treewhichisalsoleaning
shouldberemovedregardlessofthedecisionontheotherashtreesasthesetwotreeswilleventually
becomeapublichazard.  Staffincludedaconditionintheresolution thatindicated thatthesetwo
treesshouldberemoved.  Asthetreesareoff-site, noreforestation wouldberequired.    

LiftStationCapacity:  
Aresidentatthelowestserviceendoftheforcemainindicated thathewasconcerned aboutadding
additional homeswithoutknowthattheliftstationwouldbeabletoaccommodate them.  The
Engineering staffresponded thattheliftstationhasadequate capacity toservethenewhomeandthe
liftstationrehabilitation project (recentlyapproved) would improvethedependability.  Staffdoesn’t
findanyaddition improvements totheliftstationwouldbenecessary toprotect theexistingorfuture
homeowners.    

Stormwater Runoff:  
Aresidentwasconcerned thatthestormwateroverflowfromthepondwouldenduponhisproperty
andfloodhimout.  Theengineering staffconfirmed thatthepondwouldbedesigned totherequired
standards:  

Infiltrateaone-inchrainfall (providingvolumecontrol)  
Treatandholdthewateruptoa100-yearstormevent (7.25inchesina24-hour
period) (providingbothvolumecontrolandtreatment)  
Slowwater leavingthesitetonofasterthanthecurrent rateforthe2-year, 10-year
and100-yearevents (ratecontrol)   

Intheeventthatalargerthan100-yearstormeventoccurs, anemergency overflow isprovided that
woulddirectwaterintoRadissonRoad, butthatwouldberareoccurrence.    

Theapplicanthasshownthattheirprojectisconceptually consistent withthecity’srequirements but
isstillsubjecttoCityandwatershed district reviewofthefinaldesign.  

Watermain Extension:  
Aresident wantedtoknowthatthewatermain couldbeextended inthefuturetoservetheadjacent
neighborhood.  Staffnotethatthesizeproposed wouldbeadequate toservethegreaterareaand
couldalsobeprovidealoopedconnection whenextended totheexistingmainnearthewatertower in
thefuture.  

Lot11:  
Severalspeakers wereconcerned abouttheapplicants’ narrativewhichsaysthattheyhavedeeded
accesstoChristmas LakeonLot11oftheRadisson InnAddition, locatedsouthandwestofthesubject



Page5

properties adjacent toChristmas Lake.  Aneighborandlegalcounsel foranotherneighborrequested
theapplicantberequiredtoresolve theeasement issuepriortomovingforwardwiththe
development.  

StaffandtheCommission responded thattheeasement forChristmas Lakeaccessisprivateandasa
resultoutsidethejurisdiction oftheCityofShorewood.  Anydetermination forwhether theaccess
easements arevalidlyappliedtotheproperty istheresponsibility ofthepropertyowners.   

TheCityofShorewood hasalimited timeframe toreviewthedevelopment andcannotdelayactionon
thisitemduetotheprivateeasements.    







CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB RD
PARK COMMISSION MEETING SHOREWOOD CITY HALL
TUESDAY, AUGUST 16, 2022 7:00P.M.  

MINUTES

1. CONVENE PARK COMMISSION MEETING

ChairHirnerconvened themeeting at7:02p.m.  

A. Roll Call
Present:  ChairHirner, Commissioners Schmid, Gallivan, andHeinz; Parks

andRecreation Director Grout; andPlanning Director Darling

Absent: None

B. Review Agenda

Gallivan moved toapprove the agenda aswritten.  Heinz seconded themotion.  Motion
carried 4-0.  

2. APPROVAL OFMINUTES

A. Park Commission Meeting Minutes ofJuly 12, 2022

Heinz moved toapprove theminutes of theJuly 12, 2022 meeting aswritten.  Schmid
seconded themotion.  Motion carried 4-0.  

3. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR

Therewerenone.    

4. NEW BUSINESS

A. Maple Shores Development – 20430 Radisson Road

ChairHirner gaveabriefoverview oftheproposed development of7lotsat20430Radisson Road
andnoted thatstaffwasrecommending approval ofparkdedication feesinlieuorparkland
dedication.   

Commissioner Heinzstated thattheComprehensive Planstated thattheCityshouldconcentrate
moreondeveloping andredeveloping existing parks.  Hestated thathethinks thereisstillan
opportunity within theCitytoupgrade thecurrentparksystem andencompass someofthe
emerging activities, suchaspickleball.    

Commissioner Gallivan stated thatheagreed withtherecommendation bystaff fordedication
feesinlieuofadditional parkland.    

ChairHirnerstated thathealsoagreedandnotedthatthisparcel isrightonHighway 7andthere
havebeenmanydiscussions aboutparks, suchasSilverwood, thatarerightonHighway 7and
theiractualuseability because oftheproximity tothehighway.    

BRENDA
6A



PARKCOMMISSION MINUTES
TUESDAY, AUGUST16, 2022
PAGE2OF4

Gallivan moved torecommend approval ofpark dedication fees inlieuofpark land forthe
Maple Shores Development at20430 Radisson Road.  Heinz seconded the motion.  Motion
carried 4-0.  

B. Transmittal/ Introduction ofPesticide Audit and Management Plan

Planning Director Darling explained that thisagenda itemwasintended tobeanintroduction to
thePesticide AuditandManagement Plan.  Shestated thattheconsultant willbeinattendance
atthenextParkCommission meeting inorder topresent information andanswer questions about
theplan, butstaffwanted togivetheCommission achancetoreviewsomeoftheinformation
priortothemeeting.    

ChairHirnernotedthathefelt theinformation wascomprehensive buthedidhaveafew
questions, butwouldwaitandhavetheconsultant address thematthenextmeeting.    

Commissioner Heinznoted therecommended mowing heightof3inchesandstatedthathislawn
service alsomowshislawnatthatheightandhehasgottenalotofcompliments about the
greenness andlookofhislawn.   

ChairHirneraskedabout therecommendation of3inchmowing height inrelation tothebaseball
orsoccer associations duringplaying season andaskedabout theirpreferred heights onthe
fields.  Hesuggested thatbeaquestion thattheconsultant responds toatthenextmeeting.    

Planning Director Darling stated thatCitystaffcantalkwiththevarious associations priortothe
nextParkCommission meeting tofindoutiftheyhaveapreferred height forthefields.    

Commissioner Gallivan askedhowtheCitydetermined ClassA, ClassB, andClassC.    

Planning Director Darlingstated that thoseclassifications camefromtheconsultants andtheway
theyareused.  Sheexplained thatClassAfieldsaresporting fieldsordestination parks, suchas
Freeman Parkwiththeothersbeingmoremoderately usedsuchasManorParkasClassBand
Silverwood Park forClassC.  Sheaskediftherewasanyinformation thattheCommission would
liketostafftoresearch priortothenextmeeting.    

ChairHirner askediftherewouldbeanyadvantage innotmowing thehillatSilverwood Park.    

Planning Director Darling explained thatitismowed uptothepointwhere itistoosteep tomow.    

ChairHirnerreiterated thathewould liketoknowiftheremaybeanyadvantage innotmowing
thehill, forexample, doesmowing itcontribute toerosiononthehillside.     

TheCommission discussed staffing shortages inbothregular employees andseasonal
employees andthevisibilityoftheCity’sparkstobothresidents andvisitors tothearea.      

C. Liaisons forCity Council Meetings

August – Commissioner Heinz
September  – ChairHirner
November – Commissioner Gallivan (withChairHirnerasback-upifthereisascheduling issue)  



PARKCOMMISSION MINUTES
TUESDAY, AUGUST16, 2022
PAGE3OF4

5. OLD BUSINESS

ChairHirner stated thathehadstopped bySilverwood Parkrecently andthinks theparkisreally
looking great, butthesnowfencestillneeds tobetakendown.  Heaskedabout thesectionwhere
thereisnotahandrailfortheslidesnearthefirstsetofstairs.  Heexpressed concern thatkids
maygetupthereandjumpoffthelittlewallarea.  Hesuggested thatitmaybeagoodideatoget
ashortsectionofrailing tofillinthatsection.  Henotedthathehadtakenapictureandcansend
ittostaffsotheyknow justwhatheisreferring to. Heaskediftherewerestillplanstoputfence
postsbehind thewaterpumpstation.   

Planning Director Darlingstated thattheyhaverepaired afewoftheposts.  

ChairHirnernoted thattherearetwolevelsandtheupper levelhasnoposts, sohewasassuming
thattheywerestillworking onit ,butwanted todrawstaff’sattention toit, justincase.    

Planning Director Darling notedthatshewouldspeak withthecontractors andexplained someof
theother items thatareonthepunch listforthemtocomplete.    

ChairHirnernotedthathehasseenmorecars, bikesandpeoplewalking withstrollers at
Silverwood Parklately thanhehasseen thereforyears.  Heaskedthatstaffaddafutureagenda
iteminorder toplanaGrandRe-Opening.    

Commissioner Heinznotedtheusageofthewalking trails through thecountry clubarea.  He
askediftherewasanyideaonhowtheentrypoints fromthestreethavebeenreceived bythe
residents inthearea.    

Planning Director Darlingstated that theissues thattheresidents havehadnotbeenrelated to
thetrailusers.  Shestatedshethinkstheyallbought theirproperties withtheknowledge that there
werepublic trailsintheneighborhood.     

6. STAFF AND LIAISON REPORTS / UPDATES

A. City Council
B. Staff

Planning Director Darling reported thatCommissioner CohenhadtoresignfromtheCommission
because shetookanewjobandhowhasconflicts ofinterest withlocalgovernment work.  She
notedthattheCityhasbegunposting theopening forapplications forthatposition. Shegavean
overview ofdiscussion andactions takenatrecentCityCouncil meetings.    

ChairHirnernotedthattheParkCommission willhaveabitmoretimetoworkwithParkand
Recreation Director Grout beforesheretires, butwanted toletherknowthatithasbeena
pleasure toworkalongsideherandthatshewouldbemissed whensheretiresandleaves the
City.  



PARKCOMMISSION MINUTES
TUESDAY, AUGUST16, 2022
PAGE4OF4

7. ADJOURN

Gallivan moved toadjourn thePark Commission Meeting ofAugust 16, 2022 at7:50p.m.   
Schmid seconded themotion.  Motion carried 4-0.  



CITY OF SHOREWOOD COUNCIL CHAMBERS
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
TUESDAY, AUGUST 2, 2022 7:00P.M.  

DRAFT MINUTES

CALL TOORDER

Vice-Chair Riedel called themeeting toorderat 7:00 P.M. andexplained thePlanning
Commission iscomprised ofresidents oftheCityofShorewood whoareserving asvolunteers on
theCommission andareappointed bytheCityCouncil. TheCommission’sroleistohelptheCity
Council indetermining zoningandplanning issues. OneoftheCommission’sresponsibilities isto
holdpublichearings andtohelpdevelop thefactual record foranapplication andtomakeanon- 
binding recommendation totheCityCouncil. Therecommendation isadvisory only.  

ROLL CALL

Present: Commissioners Eggenberger, Riedel, Huskins andHolker; Planning Director
Darling; Planning Technician Carlson, CityEngineer Budde, andCouncil Liaison
Gorham

Absent: ChairMaddy

1. APPROVAL OFAGENDA

Holker moved, Huskins seconded, approving theagenda forAugust 2, 2022, aspresented.  
Roll call vote:  All infavor, motion passed 4/0.   

2. APPROVAL OFMINUTES

May 3, 2022

Commissioner Huskins noted twominortypographical errors intheminutes onpage9.    

Huskins moved, Holker seconded, approving thePlanning Commission Meeting Minutes
ofMay 3, 2022, asamended. Roll call vote:  All infavor, motion passed 4/0.    

3. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR - NONE

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS -   

A. PUBLIC HEARING – MAPLE SHORES:  REZONING, PUD,  
CONCEPT/DEVELOPMENT STAGE AND PRELIMINARY PLAT
Applicant: Chamberlain Capital, LLC
Location: 20430 Radisson Road and four adjacent parcels onthesouth
side ofHighway 7

Vice-ChairRiedelgaveanoverview oftheprocedures andrules forpublichearings.   

Planning Director Darling explained thattheapplicant isproposing todevelop theproperty for
sevenhomes inaplanned community withshared maintenance tobecalled ‘MapleShores’.  She
notedthatthissiteiscomprised of5separate parcels locatedbetween Radisson Roadand

BRENDA
7A



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
AUGUST 2, 2022
Page2of14

Highway 7ontheeastandnorthsidesofLakeComo.  Shereviewed theelevation andcurrent
conditions oftheproperty.  Shenotedthatthedeveloper isproposing toremove theexisting home
andlower themiddleoftheproperty inordertoconstruct thehomes alonganewprivatestreet
with4ofthehomes backing uptothelakeand3backing uptoanewstormwater pond.  She
stated thattheplanscallforwater tobeextended acrossHighway 7andnotedthatsewer is
available inRadisson Road.  Sheexplained thatthehomes would havethemajority oftheliving
areaonthemainlevelwitheitherawalk-outlevel forthoseonthelakeside oranupper levelon
thestormwater pondside.  Thehomes wouldbeupwards of3,400square feetandfeature extra
deeptwostallgarages.  Sheexplained thattheapplicant hasrequested arezoning fromR-1Ato
PUDaswellasaConcept/Development StageandPreliminary Plat.  Shegaveanoverview of
theitems thattheapplicant isrequesting flexibility onsuchastheability toconstruct two-family
homes, threehomestobeservedbyaprivate street, reduced setback, ability toremove 5,840
cubicyardsofmaterial, andtheabilitytoconstruct amodelhome priortoinstallation ofutilities
andstreetpaving.   Shestated thattheplansaretoconstruct thetownhomes andkeepthe
majority ofthesiteforopenspaceandfortheindividual homeowners tojustownthelandaround
thefoundation oftheunit.  Shereviewed theimpervious surface coverage requirement, the
amountofdirtproposed toberemoved fromthesite, therouteforthetruck traffic, andthe
requirement forafencealongthetopoftheretaining walltoaddress safetyconcerns.  Shegave
abriefoverview oftheproposed conditions thatstaff isrecommending, ifthisisapproved.   She
stated thatthesitehasanumber ofsignificant treesthatwillberemoved aspartofthisproject
and wouldberequired toreplace 28replacement trees, however, theapplicant isproposing to
plant35treeswithanumber ofthembeingalongHighway 7.  Shestated thatstaff feelsthesite
canaccommodate evenmoretreesandwouldalsoprovideagreater visualbarrier forthe
residents, sotheyarerecommending additional plantings.  Staff recommends approval subject to
theconditions listedinthestaffreport.  Shestatedthat theCityhasnotreceived anywritten
comments onthisapplication.  

Vice-ChairRiedelnotedthatthepackethadalsoincluded anengineering report andinformation
fromtheDNR.    

Commissioner Huskins askedabouthowwaterwouldbebrought intothedevelopment and
whether theCounty wouldneedtobeinvolved.    

Planning Director Darling stated thattheCityordinance requires thatanysubdivision with fouror
morehomes proposed hastobeservedbyCitywater.  Shestated thatinthisareaoftheCity
therearetwooptions forCitywater, onewouldbetodirectionally boreunderHighway 7from
mains thatarewithinExcelsior Boulevard andtheotheroptionwouldbetoextendamainfrom
publicwatermainthatisclosetothewater tower.  Shestated thattheapplicant hasproposed the
crossing underHighway 7astheirpreferred approach andwillrequire permits fromMnDot, but
nopermits forthecrossing fromtheCounty.  Sheturned theanswer tothequestion onoperation
questions ontheextension toCityEngineer Budde.   

CityEngineer Budde stated thathebelieves theirplansarefordirectional drilling whichmeans
Highway 7wouldbeundisturbed fromatrafficperspective.  Hestatedthat theCitywillrequire
thattheyhookupwitha ‘wettap’ whichmeans theyareabletomaketheconnection without
having toshutdowntheexisting 12inchmainonthenorthside.    

Commissioner Holkeraskedabout thelocation ofthehomes closest tothisdevelopment.    

Therewasananswer givenfromtheaudience.   



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
AUGUST 2, 2022
Page3of14

Commissioner Holkerstated thatshewouldalsoliketoknowabout theindication ononeofthe
mapsabout ‘limitoflandscaped yard’.    

Planning Director Darling suggested thatVice-ChairRiedel repeat thestatements thatweremade
fromtheaudience sincethose comments werenotrecorded.   

Commissioner Holkerstated that theanswer thatwasgiven indicated that thestructure shewas
referencing hadbedrooms onthebackside closest totheboundary oftheproposed development.   

Commissioner Huskins asked about information inthestaffreportabout thecommon areabeing
primarily’ used forshorearea, wetland, wetlandbuffers, stormwater pond, andopenspaces.    

Planning Director Darling statedthattherearenotawhole lotofusesbeyond theconservation
easements, wetland buffers, openspaces, andlawnareas.  Shestated thatitisallwithinanoutlot
andastructure cannotbebuiltonoutlot, whichwouldprohibit having something likeashed.    

Commissioner Holkerstatedthat therewereafewreferences toLot11andaskedforclarification
onwhatthatwasreferring to.    

Planning Director Darling stated thatshebelieved thosereferences were intheproperty owners
narrative.  Shenotedthatlot11isownedbyanadjacent property ownerbutmanyoftheresidents
intheareahaveaprivate easement over theproperty foraccess tothelakeandpassive
shoreland uses.  Shestated thattheeasement isprivateandwhether ornotthenewresidents in
thesubdivision haverights tothelotisoutside theCity’sauthority andtheCitydoesnotget
involved intheinterpretation ofprivate easements, which iswhyitwasnotaddressed inherstaff
report.    

Commissioner Huskins askedaboutLakeComoanditsallowed uses.    

Planning Director Darling statedthatthelotlines, whentheyareshowed asextending intothe
lake, areriparian, whichmeans theDNRhasjurisdiction overeverything below theordinary high
water level forLakeComo.  Shestated thatmeans itisopentouseeventhough thereisnopublic
access tothislake.  Sheexplained thatitwasaveryshallow lakewithmarshland alltheway
around it.  Shestated thatthereisnothing preventing people fromfishingonthelake, butshe
wasnotsureiftherewereevenanyfishinthelake.    

Commissioner Huskins askedifitwouldbeafairstatement tosaythatifthisPUDwascompleted,  
itwouldnotchange thecharacter ofthelake, access tothelake, orchange whatpeoplehave
beenroutinely doing.  

Planning Director Darling stated thatiscorrectandtheonlychange wouldbetheareasthatare
adjacent tothelakethatarewithintheseparcels wouldbeowned incommon.  Shestated thatit
doesmean thattheresidents couldwalkdowntotheshoreland andusethewater, iftherewas
anykindofclearandopenaccess tothewater, forexample foracanoeorkayak.    

Vice-ChairRiedelasked iftherewouldbeanyrestriction onputtingadockintothelake.   

Planning Director Darling stated that theDNRwouldnothavearestriction thatwouldprohibit
anyone fromputting inadock, however theCity’swetland regulations donotallowforartificial
obstructions ofstormwater purposes, sothisisabitcomplicated because oftheextensive
marshland.    



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
AUGUST 2, 2022
Page4of14

Commissioner Holkeraskediflooking across thelaketheretaining wallwouldbevisible.    

Planning Director Darling stated thatthelowestportionoftheretaining wallwouldbeabout18
feetabove theordinary highwater levelofthelakebutnoted thatitisfairlyheavily treed inthe
areawhichshould obscure someofthevisibility.    

Commissioner Eggenberger askedabout theplans toassigneachhomeacertain amountof
surface theycanuseinthefuture forimpervious surface coverage.    

Planning Director Darling explained thatthiswasbothnowandinthefutureandisbasedonthe
stormwater designandthegoalofnotexceeding the25% allowed.  

Commissioner Eggenberger confirmed thatthefirstperson tobuildcouldnotcomeinanduseof
theentireallotment.    

Planning Director Darling explained thatthiswaswhythereisaportion assigned toeachlotso
onehomeowner couldnotuseuptheimpervious surface allowed foranotherhomeowner.    

Commissioner Eggenberger stated thatheassumes thattherewouldbealotofwaterbehind the
retaining wallandaskedwhere thewaterwillgo.    

Planning Director Darling stated thatsheanticipates thattheywill tilethewateraround thewall
aspartoftheirstructural designofthewall.    

Commissioner Eggenberger stated thatthereare68ashtreesonthesite.  Hestatedthathe
understands that thereareplanstohaveanarborist comeinandseewhich onesshouldbe
removed butasked, before thedevelopment begins, whytheywouldn’tjustcomeinandremove
alloftheashtreessotheyarenotevenabletogetashborer.  Hestatedthat inhisminditmay
beeasier togetthemalloutandthemcompensate withadditional trees.  

Planning Director Darling explained thattheCommission couldcertainly propose something to
thateffect.  Shestated thatsomeoftheexisting treesareonprettysteepslopesandgetting the
equipment downtheremaycausemoredamage thanletting thetreedienaturally.  Shestated
thattheyareintheconservation easement area, sotheycanbeallowed tobecome partofthe
naturalenvironment astheydie.  Sheclarified thatitisunlikely thatthetreesonthoseslopes
wouldbeahazard forthenewstructures.  

Commissioner Eggenberger stated thathewasnotimplying thattheycouldbeahazard tothe
structure, butratherapotential hazardofspreading ashborer.  Hestated thattohim, itwould
makemoresense, before thedevelopment evenbegins, tojustgoinandremove thoseashtrees.    

Planning Director Darling stated thattheCommission couldconsider thisasanaddedcondition.   

Vice-ChairRiedelstated thattherewillbelargeareasthatareundisturbed, sotogointo
specifically cutoutashtreesmaynotbethebestwaytomoveforward.    

PaulCameron, Chamberlain Capital, stated thattheideabehind thisdevelopment isaneedthat
heandhiswifepersonally have.  Hestated thattheyarecoming outofabighouse, theirchildren
areincollegesotheydon’tneedthatmuchspace. Hestated thattheywanttoliveinaspacethat
isverycontrolled andhave theirowngarages withsomeextraspaceforthings suchas
motorcycles.  Hestated thatthefullybuiltoutspaces areabout3,500square feetbutthey include
spaces likesunrooms andscreened inporchspaces.  Hestated thatthespaces areintended to



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
AUGUST 2, 2022
Page5of14

besingle level livingwithextraspaceeitherupordownstairs forwhencompany comesover.  He
stated thattheyareenvisioning thisasaturnkey typeofproperty wherepeople cangosouthfor
thewinterwithout having toworryaboutanything because theassociation isintended tobefull
maintenance.  Heexplained thattheyhadoriginally planned for9unitsbutafterdiscussing the
futureexpansion ofHighway 7, theyreduced thenumber ofunitsdownto7.  Henotedthatallof
thegutterswillbehelmeted andthewaterwillcomedown thehouseandbackintothestreet
underground andfollowing thestormwater allthewaydowntothecatchbasinsandthenintothe
pond.  Hestated thattheoneexception maybeonthebackside because theyaren’tsurethey
cangetthegutteranglecorrect.    

Vice-ChairRiedelaskedifMr. Cameron wasinagreement with therecommendations suggested
bystaffandgaveexamples ofHOArules.    

Mr.  Cameron stated thattheywereinagreement andassured theCommission that theywereof
themindset that itshouldbeareally clean development.  Henotedthattheyarenotinfavorof
parking onthestreetovernightorhavingathirdvehicleparkedonthedriveway because itdoesn’t
fitinthegarage.  Hestated thattheywillprobably havetohaveexceptions forsituations likea
college kidhomeforthesummer, but suggested thattheymayhaveapermitprocess inthat
situation.    

Vice-ChairRiedelnotedthat thereisnoparking allowed onRadisson Road.  Hestated thathe
suspects therewillbeconcerns raisedabout that, theamountoftraffic, andstressed that there
simplycannoteverbeoverflow trafficonRadisson Road.    

Mr. Cameron stated thatheunderstood andexplained theirhopesforparking situations suchas
apartyorevenandnotedthatheexpects thissituation toariseonlyrarely.    

Commissioner Huskins asked ifhisunderstanding wascorrect thatthiswasaonephaseprocess
andtheywouldbuildwhentheygetacontract.  Heaskedwhattheyexpect thetimeframe would
befromfirstsaletoseventh sale.    

Mr. Cameron stated thatthecustomer forthiswouldbesomeone whoalready livesinthearea
andwould liketodownsize without having toleavethearea.  Hestated thatthebelieve their
primary residents willbeemptynesters whowillbedownsizing andwillhaveequity intheirhomes
sotheydonotthinktheywillneedtobesensitive tothetalkabout recession andhigher interest
rates.  Henotedthattheir intent istoonlybuild themodelhomeifitisneeded, depending onthe
timing.  Hestated thattheexpectation isthattheywillbuildnextspringandbereadytomove
forward withall7units.  Henotedthatwhentheyhadoriginally puttogether theirplan, theyhad
expected tobefurtheralongintheprocess bynow.  Henotedthatheisnotconcerned about any
oftheconditions andexpectations raisedbystaffbecause theyallappear tobeverylogicalbut
reiterated thatmanyofthemmaynotendupbeingrelevant because theymaynotevenhavea
modelandwill justmove right intobuilding theactual products.    

Vice-ChairRiedelopened thePublicHearing at7:56P.M. noting theprocedures usedinaPublic
Hearing.    

PaulCossette, 5570ShoreRoad, stated thathefeelstheCityhasdoneafinejobassessing what
willneedtobedonewiththeassumption thataPUDisapproved.  Hestated thathebelieves their
issueisthattheydonotbelieveaPUDshouldbeapproved because thethingsbeingdoneunder
theguiseofaPUDdonotnecessarily fitwiththezoning thatisthereortheneighborhood
development thewayitisnow.  Hestated thattheimpactofthevariances beingdiscussed do
impact thepeople intheneighborhood andtheatmosphere thatisthere.  Hestated thatifit



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
AUGUST 2, 2022
Page6of14

remained under theexisting zoninghedidnotfeeltheywouldhavethose issues.  Hestated that
their first issueiswiththesignificant amountoftrees thatwillberemoved because itisessentially
two-thirdsofthetreesintheareaandtoscrapemostoftheremaining areatoturnitintoaparking
lot.  Hestated thatthosetreesprovide atremendous amountofnoise protection andarevisually
veryimportant andthereplacement treesareverysmall.  Heexplained thathisnext issuewas
related tothecapacityoftheliftstation thatisinplacebecause thiswilladdasignificant amount
ofpeople ontotheliftstation.  Hestated thathisbasement isthelowest thingintheentire area,  
sowhentheliftstationdoesn’twork, whichhashappened, hisbasement floodswithrawsewage,  
whichobviously causes himconcern.  Hestatedthatheisalsoconcerned about thestormwater
run-offandnotedthatthewayitissetupwith thepondisverygoodforstandard rainandstandard
run-off, buttheapplicant admits intheir information thatonceitisovera1inchrainthewaterwill
flowdownthestreetandintoComo andintothepondacross thestreet, which happens tobein
frontofhishouse.  Heexpressed concern about thesizingofthewatermains andasked thatif
thisisapproved andmoves forward under thePUDthattheyaresizedsotheneighborhood could
connect uptoCitywater, whichhethinksthemajority would liketodoifitwereanoption.  He
stated thathefeltthevariances beingaskedforweresignificant andnotedthatthecloser
proximity ofthebuildings meanthatitwillbeamuchmore denseneighborhood whichisnot
allowed underthecurrent zoningand, inhisopinion, isnotappropriate fortheneighborhood.  He
stated thathequestioned howtheneighbor inthenearby housewillbeeffected bythelarge
retaining wallthatisplanned.    

ScottSmith, 6313LochMoorDrive, Minneapolis, stated thathewasanattorney representing
DonnaWattsandBillHitlerwhoarethefeeownersofLot #11.  Hestatedthathewould liketo
discuss this lotinrelation totheprojectandnoted thatheheardPlanning Director Darling’s
comment relative totheeasement issuebutnotedthathewouldvociferously disagree withthe
notion thattheimpacts ofthisproject, ifapproved, uponLot #11andtheeasement holders, are
beyond thepurview oftheCommission.   Hestatedthathefeels theCommission ischarged with
considering theimpacts inavarietyofcircumstances thatthisproject, asproposed, mayhaveon
things likevegetation, trees, taxbase, parking, andtraffic.  Hestated that theimpact thatthis
projectmayhaveontheLot #11easement holders rights, aresomething that theyaskthe
Commission toconsider anddealwith.  Hestated thathisclientsareopposed tothisproposal
andurgetheCommission torecommend denial.  Hestated thatheassumed that theCommission
wasgenerally familiar withthefactthatthereareeasements onmostoftheRadisson InnAddition
properties thatallowthemtouseLot #11forcertain purposes. Hestated thattheproblem isthat
thisproject isbeingmarketed that ithashomeswithaccess toChristmas Lake, however theonly
suchaccess isthrough Lot #11because theseproperties arenotonChristmas Lake.  Hestated
thatthinks thatLot #11becomes animportant partofthepuzzlefortheCommission toconsider
eventhough therehaveonlybeentworeferences toLot #11inthematerials submitted tothem.   
Henoted therewasreallynothing saidthataddresses howthedeveloper willaddress theimpact
ofmulti-familyhousing withseven families ontwolotsandhowitwillburden boththeownersof
Lot #11andtheotherswhoareentitled touseitthrough existing easements.  Hestated that the
lackofdiscussion intheproposal onthisissuefeelsproblematic. Henotedthatheseesthebigger
problem asshoehorning seven families intotwolotsthatwerecreated in1939which isnotallowed
under thesefactsbyMinnesota law.  Hestated thatthe ‘black letter law’ inMinnesota isthatan
easement shallnotbeenlarged bylegalconstruction beyond theobjects originally contemplated
bytheparties.  Hestated thatitraises thequestion ofwhattheintentwaswhentheeasement
wascreated in1939regarding thenumber ofpeoplewhowouldbeentitled toaccessLot #11.   
Hestated thathethinksthattheoriginal intentwasnever formulti-familydwellings ormultiple
families livingonsingle lotstohavefullaccess rights.  Hestated thatthiswaseasement was
originally created, theproperties beingdiscussed wereLots #24and #23andreferenced page14
ofthepacket material submitted bytheapplicant ofRegistered LandSurveyN. 730which is
referenced asLot #23andexplained thatLot #24runstothenorth.  Heexplained thathebelieves



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
AUGUST 2, 2022
Page7of14

theoriginal intentofthegrantorofthiseasement wasthattherewouldbetwolotsandtwo
dwellings whichwouldbetheburdenonLot #11.    

Commissioner Eggenberger askediftherewasanyevidence toshowthattheythought those lots
wouldneverbedivided.    

Mr. Smithstatedthatisafairpoint, butheknowsofnoevidence thatindicates thatthelotscould
notbedivided, however theydoknowthatLot #23wasessentially divided into8tractsofland.   
Heexplained thathestillgoesbacktotheoriginal intentofthegrantor from1939because
according toMinnesota lawyoucannot impose theadditional burden ofhaving thosefamilies on
thatlotbeyond whatwasintended atthetimeofthecreation oftheeasement.    

Vice-ChairRiedel statedthattheCitydoesnotgrantprivate easements, adjudicate disputes over
easements, orenforceeasements whichisamatter for thecourts.  Hestated thatsomeofthe
discussion happening hereisdirectedatthewrongaudience andthedisputes overtheeasement
arenotrelevant tothediscussofthezoning criteria thatisbeforetheCommission.  Hestated that
hewouldnotdiscourage discussion orcomments butwanted tomakeitclear thatthediscussion
couldnotbedonetodebate thevalidityorimpactoftheeasements.    

Commissioner Huskins stated thatMr. Smithhasusedtheterm ‘burden’ whichheisinterpreting
asmeaning thenumber ofpeople thatareentering andleaving through Lot #11.  Heaskedhow
manyhomeowners hadthisdeeded easement today.   

Mr. Smithstated thathebelieves thenumber isinthevicinityof20.  

Amanfromtheaudience statedthatthenumber is13.  

Adifferent manstated thatthisnumber wasnotcorrect.    

Mr. Smithsuggested thathegettheexactnumber andsubmit ittotheCitywithinadayortwo.   
Hestated thatthequestion raisedbyCommissioner Huskins isgoodbecause thisispotentially a
precedent setting decision because theremaybeotherproperties intheRadisson InnAddition
thathavethesameeasement rightsandotherdevelopers maywanttocomeandbuildmulti- 
familyunitsaswell.  Hestated thathewoulddisagree withVice-ChairRiedel thatthisdiscussion
isbeyond thepurview ofthePlanning Commission because theyarecharged with considering
thepotential impacts ofthechanging inzoningontheexisting community.  Hereiterated thathe
didnotthinkMinnesota lawallows thedeveloper topyramid7neweasement holdersoutofan
estateontwolotsthatwasclearlynever intended forthispurpose bythegrantor in1939.    

Vice-ChairRiedelnotedthatheagreed withMr. Smith’sfirstpoint, butnothissecond point.  He
explained thathewouldagree that, verybroadly, itiswithin theCommission’spurview toconsider
this issue, buthedisagreed thatitisfortheCommission toconsider thelegalityofthesubdivision
because thatisamatter tobeargued before thecourts.  Hestated thathewouldagreethatitis
within theirpurview toconsider theimpactofthesubdivision, which includes theeasement.  

Mr. Smithstatedthatabout fiveyearsagotherewasapetition thatwasputforward relative tothe
useofthedockatLot #11toexpand thenumber ofboats thatwouldbeallowed totieupthereby
easement holders.  Hestated thatthiswasalegalissueandnoted thattheCouncil gotanopinion
fromthecityattorney, buttheyultimately rejected theapplication because itwasprohibited by
LakeMinnetonka ordinances.   



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
AUGUST 2, 2022
Page8of14

Vice-ChairRiedelnotedthathefeelsthereisacritical difference inthissituation because inthe
City’szoningcodethereislanguage thatpertains totheuseofthedocksandthereisnothing in
theCitycodethatpertains toeasements andeasements rightsbecause thatisaState issue.    

Commissioner Eggenberger asked what ‘additional burden’ heandhisclientswereconcerned
about.    

Mr. Smithexplained thatitwouldbethings likeadded traffic, waste, potential fordamage, and
leaving water toysaround.  Hestated thatthetrafficalonemakes theproperty lessmarketable.   
Hestated thatadding7newfamilies wasnotaburden thathisclientscontemplated whenthey
acquired Lot #11in2015.    

Michael Cohen, 20640Radisson Road, statedthathisboundary touches theboundary ofMaple
Shores.  Hestated thathehasbeenasteward oftaking careofLakeComo forthelast35years.   
Hestated thathewould liketoknowexactly thepercentage ofacre, perunit, thatisbeing allowed
onthisPUDbecause heowns3acresrightnextdoor.  Hestated thataccording tothecomment
fromMr. Smith, theCitywillsettheprecedent whichmeanshecoulddothesamethingasis
beingproposed, butnotedthattheneighborhood wasneverdesigned for14twinhomes.  He
stated thattheCitycannot simplydecide toapprove these actions foroneperson andnotfor
another.  HenotedthatMr. Cossette mentioned theliftstationandnotedthatthelowpointofthe
hillhasaliftstation whichdoesnothaveagensetsowhenthepowergoesouttheliftstation fails
because thereisnotgenerator.  Hestatedthat if7newhomesareadded, hethinkstheyneedto
consider thecostofagenerator toliftthesanitary waste fromthoseadditional homes.  He
explained thathehasgoodfeelings about thenewneighbors andthinks theyarewonderful people
butasked theCommission torealize thatiftheyareallowed todevelop, hecanalsodevelop.  He
stated thatiftheydetermine thattheycanaddmoreaccess toLot #11, socanhe. Hestated that
itisunfortunate, buttherehasbeenfraudinthistransaction. Hestated thatthereisatemplate
forthe13families thatwon, atanenormous cost, a10-footeasement and121feetofusage with
adock.  Hestated thatwhenMr. Chamberlain bought theproperty, theverbiage wasinhispacket,  
which istotal fraudbecause hewasnotallowed that.  Hestated thatthreemonths afteritwas
bought, itwasswitched back sohefeelsMr. Chamberlain wasduped onthistransaction.  He
stated thathefeelsitmakesahugedifference onthepricehecansellthesefor, thequality they
canbebuiltwithifthisproperty, which islakeadjacent, cangettothelakeversusnotbeingable
togettothelake.  Hestated thathebelieves thisistheoldesteasement intheStateaswellas
themost litigated easement.  Hestated thathewouldsuggest thatbeforeanything goesforward
thatthelegalteamfromthefeeholderandthebuildergetanadjudication fromthecourtssothey
knowexactly whattheycansell.    

PaulaCallies, 20466 Radisson Road, stated thatherhomeisacross thestreet fromthe
development.  Shestated thatsheagreed thatthiswasthewrongvenueforadiscussion around
Lot #11 andagreed withthesuggestion byMr. Cohenthatthereshouldbesomeother legal
remedy.  Shestated thatshefeelsthearguments madebyMr. Smithwereverycogentbut
reiterated thatshefeelsthisisthewrongvenue.  Shestatedthatsheappreciated thequestioning
byCommissioner Eggenberger andexplained thatshedoesn’treallycareifthereare7more
peoplewhocanwalkdowntothelakebutnotedthat thereisalimitonhowmanyboatscanbe
there, norcantherebeanother dock.  Shestatedthatthisisalong-standing issueandexplained
thatwhenherproperty wassubdivided, theyreceived thebenefit ofthateasement sotheremay
beotherproperties thatcanalsobesubdivided.  Shestated thatthisproposal wouldbeachange
forthempersonally andexplained thatithasbeenanuisance property, sotheyarelooking
forward tohaving itcleaned upandimproved compared towhatiscurrently there.  Shestated
thatshecouldalsosaythatshewishesthatitwouldbeonesingle familyhomeinthislocation,  
butdoubts thatwouldbearealistic expectation.  Shestated thatshewouldbeinfavorofaquality



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
AUGUST 2, 2022
Page9of14

development andfeelsthatMr. Cameron hasbeenresponsive inlistening totheneighborhood
thusfar, andhasreduced thedensity, whichshefeelsispositive.  Shenotedthatshedidhave
someconcerns about thesight lines.  Sheexplained thatshefelttheconditions recommended
bystaffappear tobereasonable andtheapplicant hasexpressed willingness tocomply withthem
which isalsopositive.    

Commissioner Huskins askedifMs. Callieswasadvocating thatthematter relating toLot #11be
adjudicated priortoapproval bytheCity.   

Ms. Callies statedthatshedidnotthinktheCityhadanyauthority torequire that.  Shestatedthat
itwouldbegreat ifitcouldberesolved butnotedthat ithasbeengoingonforalongtime.  She
notedthatthereisdifferent easement language fordifferent properties.    

Commissioner Huskins stated thathisunderstanding isthatthis isnotsomething thattheycould
makeasacondition ofapproval andwouldbecome partoftheapplicants’ decision-making
process astowhether ornotitisariskthattheywishtotaketobuildthedevelopment.    

Vice-ChairRiedelaskediftherewereanyresidents present whowanted tospeak about issues
other thanLot #11suchasscreening andtraffic.   

Mr. Cohenstated thatiftheassumption ismadethatall7homes aresolditwouldbringan
additional 14cars.  Hestatedthat thereisanextremely narrow curveonRadisson RoadnearAl
Peterson’shouse that isonlywideenough foronecartopassthrough atatime.  Hestated that
byadding14carsandnothaving thisbeathrough-wayisaconcern.  Hestated thathebelieves
theycanlivewithitaslongasthepeople realize thatthere isaneasierandsaferwayout.  He
expressed concern about theheavyequipment andconstruction trafficandstated thathedidn’t
feeltheyshouldevergothrough thatnarrow portion.    

Vice-ChairRiedel stated thatcurrently there isalotofgreenspaceandthatwillchange with
development.  Hestated thatHighway 7isverynoisyandaskedhowresidents feltabout this
change inscreening.    

Mr. Cohenstated thatthenoiseofHighway 7isbasedontheroadsurface whichhasimproved
over theyearsgreatly.  Hestated thatbecause ofthelargedropinelevation hethinks thenoise
willgooverthisproperty.  Henotedthatonhisproperty whenthetreeslosetheir leaveshecan
seeHighway 7.  Hestated thatMr. Chamberlain didagreat jobwiththeir treeplanning andfeels
thathehascompletely respected hisviewwhichheappreciates.   

DavidDownes, 20465Radisson Road, askedaboutthecomments sharedabout theliftstation
andaskedifhewascorrect thatthisliftstationwasabout tobereplaced.    

CityEngineer Buddestated thathewasnotawareofthatplan.   

Mr. Downes stated thatheunderstands thattreesarecoming down, buthouses willbegoingup.   
Heexplained thatwhentheybuilt theirhome, noisefromHighway 7wasamajorconcern butit
hasreallybeenanon-issue sohedidnotthinktherewouldbeaverysignificant change with
theseplans.    

Mr. Cossette stated thathethinks thereisalotofconcern about thetreescoming downandthe
potential noiseitmaycreate forcertain residents.  Hesuggested thattherebeanindependent
soundanalysisofwhatthiswillcausewiththeremoval ofthetrees.  Hestated thathethinks that
thehomeswillblocksomeofthenoise, butitmayalsopushnoiseover.    



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
AUGUST 2, 2022
Page10of14

Mr. Cohenaskedabout theholding pondinthebackoftheproperty.  Hestated thathis
understanding isthatthedrainfortheholding pondwillbeintoLakeComoandaskedwhat
permits wouldbenecessary inordertoallowthisoverflow.    

Vice-ChairRiedel stated thattheholding pondispartofthestormwater management plan
submitted bytheapplicant tocapture theadditional water fromthenewimpervious surface.  He
stated thatitwasdesigned tocapture andinfiltrate waterbuttheoverflow during significant rain
eventswoulddrain intoLakeComo.   

CityEngineerBuddeexplained thattheapplicant wouldneedapermit fromtheMinnehaha Creek
Watershed District andiftheyworkwithin theordinary highwater levelofLakeComotheywill
alsoneedapermit fromtheDNR.      

Planning Director Darling suggested thattheCommission maywanttotakeabriefbreak.    

Vice-ChairRiedel recessed themeeting at8:48p.m. andreconvened at8:51p.m.  

Therebeingnoadditional publiccomment, Vice-ChairRiedelclosed thepublichearingat8:51
p.m.  

Mr. Chamberlain stated thatheappreciates thefeedback theyhavegottenandnotedthathehad
spoken withsomeindividuals andtriedtoresolve manyofthese issuesalready.  Hestated that
theirstormwater designmeetstherequirements bytheMinnehaha CreekWatershed District and
hasgonethrough alltheappropriate processes.  Hestated thatregarding thetrees, theyare
required togiveanarborist treesurveyontheproperty andwerenotrequired todothe60feet
fromtheblacktop ofHighway 7totheproperty boundary.  Hestated that theyareplanning totake
theproperty downevenfurther thanitalready is, sowhatever noise iscoming across thosetrees
andcontinuing outwillcontinue because hecannotputabarrieratthehighway level.  Hestated
thattheytriedtokeeparingoftreesaround theentire development andcreateasortofenclave
inside.  Hestatedthathefeelsthistypeofhousing istrulyneeded inthearea.  Heunderstands
thatchange canbehardbutfeelsthisisneededandnoted thattheyarenotplanning tobuild
something thatisugly.  Hestated thatheishoping thatthiswillbekindofatimeless, FrankLloyd
Wright typestyle.  Hestatedthattheyaredoingcheap, low-endconstruction.    

Vice-ChairRiedel statedthat thetreeremoval isoneofthemostsignificant aspects ofthis
proposal.  Hestated thatasoneoftheresidents stated, ifthiswerejustanR-1Aparcelwith6
acres, withthewetland buffers theremaybeabletobeoneortwohomes, whichmeans they
most likelywouldhaveremoved farfewertrees.  Hestated thatinexchange forcutting downa
lotoftrees, theyareaccepting restrictions aspartofthePUD.  Hestated thathefeelsthatstaff
hasdoneagoodjobofemphasizing theneedforscreening andstrategic planting oftrees.  He
stated thathefeels thattherighttodevelop atahigher density should haveacommensurate
higherburden toprovide screening topreserve thecharacter oftheneighborhood, which currently
hasalotofgreenspace.    

Mr. Chamberlain stated thathetotallyagreed andassured theCommission thattheywereon
boardwiththatidea.  Hestated thathedidn’tthinkmanypeople understood thatthereare5lots,  
withonethatcouldprobably besubdivided again, buttheydonotconform sothereareprocesses
intheCitythatallowthemtodealwithnon-conforming lots.  Hestated thatwouldbe6lotsand
heisasking for7, buttocluster themtogether asguided intheComprehensive Planandmeldit
together intoonepackage thatmakessense.    



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
AUGUST 2, 2022
Page11of14

Vice-ChairRiedel stated thatthereare5lotsofrecord.  

Someone fromtheaudience askedtomakeacomment.   

Vice-ChairRiedel reopened thepublichearing at8:59p.m.  

Gregory Hofstede, 20480Radisson Road, askedabout theretaining wallbecause hefeelsthere
aresomeelevation issues inthewaythedrawing iscurrently shown.    

Therebeingnoadditional publiccomment, Vice-chairRiedel closed thepublic hearingat9:00
p.m.  

Mr. Chamberlain explained thatitalmost looks likethere wasaroadthatwascarvedoutinthe
middleoftheproperty.  Hestated thatitishighinthemiddleandthengoesdownonbothsides
soinordertogetabuilding pad, theyhavetoflatten thatareawhichmeans theactualelevations
willdrop.  Hestated thatastheyblendthehillcoming downontothesides, theendsofthe
retaining wallswill justbe1footandwillbeblendedonthesides.    

Vice-ChairRiedelaskedabout thebuilding materials planned fortheretaining wall.    

Mr. Chamberlain stated thattheretaining wallwillbeengineered andwillnotbeboulder wall.   

Vice-ChairRiedelaskedifintherewereanyplansforscreening atthebaseofthewalltokindof
hidethewall.   

Mr. Chamberlain stated thathecannot because itisinthewetland buffer.  

Vice-ChairRiedelnotedthatoncethesoilhasbeendisturbed tobuildaretaining wall, hebelieves
theywouldbepermitted toplantshrubs right infrontofit.    

Mr. Chamberlain stated thathebelieves thatwouldbedetermined byMinnehaha Creek
Watershed District, sotheycouldaskiftheycouldputshrubs in.  

Vice-ChairRiedel statedthatheunderstanding isthatyouarenotallowed tocutthingsdownin
abufferzonebutyouareallowed toplant inawetland bufferzone.    

Commissioner Eggenberger noted thatmanytimestheCitywillseetractsoflandthatthe
neighbors don’twantanything tobebuilt there.  Hestated thathewouldagreewiththecomments
madeearlier thattheLot #11issueisnottheCommission’sissue. Hestated thatheisperhaps a
bitmoreconcerned about theliftstationandwatermain issuesandsuggested that itmaybea
goodideatolookmorecloselyatthose issues. Hestated thatoverall hethinks thisisareasonable
planandnotedthathedisagreed withthenotion thatthisproject wouldbeprecedent setting if
thisisallowed.  Hestated thatheplanstorecommend approval withtheconditions as
recommended bystaff.   

Vice-ChairRiedel suggested that theCommission couldaddacondition related totheliftstation.  

Commissioner Huskins stated thatheagreed withCommissioner Eggenberger’sconcerns about
theliftstation.  Hestatedthat, ingeneral, heisfavorable towards theproposal.  Hestated thathe
alsoagreed that theissuerelatedtoLot #11wasnottheCommissions issuebutwillbeforthe
applicant.    



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
AUGUST 2, 2022
Page12of14

Commissioner Holkerstated thatshewasalsoinfavorofrecommending approval ofthisproposal
andnotedthatsheappreciated thewayithasbeentucked inandthatitisasmaller density
development.    

Commissioner Huskins suggested thatinaddition toacondition aboutstudying theliftstation
situation hethinks therecouldalsobetheopportunity totakealookatthetreesandthesight
lines.    

Vice-ChairRiedel stated thattheissueofLot #11isverycomplex andreiterated hisstatement
thattheCitydoesnotadjudicate, enforce, orpassjudgement oneasements.  Hestated thatthe
issueofthesubdivision andtheeasement thatgoeswithit, isbroadly relevant herehowever there
isreallynothing fortheCommission todiscuss.  HestatedthatthefinalpointmadebyMr.  
Chamberlain wasastrongpoint thattheyown6acres inR-1Athathas 5lotsthatareall
substandard, butifyouownproperty inthisdistrict, youaregenerally allowed tobuildonit.  He
stated thathebelieves thatvariances wouldbeneeded ineverydirection whichwould notbe
desirable.  Hestated thataPUDthatproposes 7homes isacompromise butagreeswith
Commissioner Holker thatthisseemsverywell laidoutinthewaytheyaretucked intothearea.   
Hestated thatitappears thatstaffandtheapplicant haveworked hardtominimize theimpact
andnotedthathealsointends torecommend approval.  Hestated thattherehasbeendiscussion
oftheliftstationandquestioned whether thatshouldbeincluded asacondition orifitcould just
beadirective tostaff.   

CityEngineer Buddestated thattheCity isplanning torehabthatliftstation thisyearwhichmeans
replacing alotofits ‘guts’ andmaking surethatitwillfunction longterm.  Heexplained thatthe
rehabwillnotchange thecapacity oftheliftstation because italready hasadequate capacity for
thisdevelopment. Hestated thathewouldagree thatitisvulnerable withpower outages which is
something hewilldiscusswithPublicWorksbecause thiscouldbeagood timetodosomething
about thataspartoftherehabprocess.  Hestated thathewillfollowupandprovideasummary
thatexplains morespecifics oftheliftstationandhowthisdevelopment wouldchange ittomake
sureeveryone understands itclearly.    

Commissioner Huskins askediftheycouldalsogetsomeinformation about theretaining walland
whattypesofscreening wouldbepossible.   

CityEngineer Buddestated thattheycangetfeedback onthat.    

Planning Director Darling stated thatregarding thewetlandbuffers, thetwojurisdictions, theCity
andtheMinnehaha CreekWatershed District haveadifferent sizedbuffers andarebothapplying
therequired buffers tothisdevelopment.  Shestated thattheCity’sbuffer is35feetforthewetland
buffer itselfandinthatareatheywouldnotallowanyconstruction andtreeremoval wouldbe
limitedtojustnoxious weedsanddiseased trees.  Sheexplained thattheMinnehaha Creek
Watershed District requires 40feetforthewetland bufferbuttheydoallowsomeflexible
averaging.  Shenotedthat theDNRhasaskedthattheentiretyoftheMinnehaha Creek
Watershed Districtbeincluded intheconservation easement.  Sheexplained thattypically once
there isaconservation easement youdonotwantanyadditional landscaping andsimplypreserve
thenaturalhabitat thatisthere, buttherearetimeswhentheremaybealotofdeadfall ordiseased
treesthatthe areaneedstobere-vegetated toprevent erosionbyusingsome typeofnative
plantings.  Shestated thatadditional treesorshrubs couldbeaddedatthetopendofthewetland
bufferbutwouldnotwanttogetsoclosewiththerootsystems thattheretaining wallmaybe
destabilized.    



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
AUGUST 2, 2022
Page13of14

Commissioner Huskins statedthatearlier inthemeeting Commissioner Eggenberger hadmade
astatement abouthis concern regarding theashtrees andaskediftheapplicant hadany
feedback onthat issue.   

Planning Director Darling stated thatafter themeeting shecouldgothrough onthe ‘saved’ trees
anddetermine howmanyofthosewouldbeashtrees.    

Commissioner Eggenberger askedwhowasresponsible forremoving theashtreesiftheyare
diseased.    

Planning Director Darling stated thatifthereisdocumented ashboreronprivateproperty, they
wouldhavetoissueorders fortheirremoval.  Sheexplained thatiftheywereinthepublicright- 
of-way, thentheCitywouldberesponsible.  Shestated thattheyknowtheemeraldashborer is
marching thisway, andispresent inthesurrounding communities, however, therehasonlybeen
onedocumented case, todate, intheCity.    

Vice-ChairRiedel reminded attendees thatthePlanning Commission wasjustanadvisory body
andthatthefinaldecision would restwiththeCityCouncil.    

Planning Director Darling agreed andnotedthatthereareafewmoresteps inthereviewand
approval process ifthismoves forward.  Shestated thattheParksCommission willalsoreview
thedevelopment foritsimpact totheparksystem intheCityonAugust16, 2022.  Shestated that
onAugust 22, 2022theCityCouncilwillholdasecond public hearingonthisapplication.  She
stated thatiftheCouncil approves theplans, thenextstepwouldbetosubmitaFinalPUDand
FinalPlatwhichwould takealloftheconditions andincorporate themintotheplansandresubmit
withfinaldetails required.    

Eggenberger moved, Huskins seconded, recommending approval ofthe request for
rezoning from R-1AtoPlanned Unit Development; PUD Concept and Development Plan,  
and Preliminary Plat for ‘Maple Shores’ forproperty located at20430 Radisson Road and
four adjacent unaddressed parcels, subject tothestaff recommendations.   Roll call vote:   
all infavor, motion passed 4/0.  

Commissioner Eggenberger askedstafftolookintotheliftstation issuepriortotheCityCouncil
meeting.    

Vice-ChairRiedelaskedstafftoalsotakealookintotheashborer issueandtheratiooftree
replacement thatmaybenecessary.    

5. NEW BUSINESS

A. Liaisons forCity Council Meetings – August through December

August – Commissioner Riedel
September – Commissioner Eggenberger
October – Commissioner Holker
November – Commissioner Riedel (tentative)  
December – Commissioner Huskins



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
AUGUST 2, 2022
Page14of14

6. REPORTS

Council Meeting Report

Council Liaison Gorham reported onmatters considered andactions takenduring theCouncil’s
recentmeetings.   

Draft Next Meeting Agenda

Planning Technician Carlson notedthatthereareafewapplications comingupfor thenext
meeting: anaddition toanon-conforming house; aCUPforaprivacy fence; andaPreliminary
Platforanoutlot thatwillbeconverted intoasingle-family lot.   

7. ADJOURNMENT

Huskins moved, Holker seconded, adjourning thePlanning Commission Meeting of
August 2, 2022, at9:34P.M. Roll Call Vote:  Ayes – all. Motion passed 4/0.  



7B

MEETING TYPE
RegularMeetingCityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title / Subject:   Rezoning, PUDConcept/ Development StagePlan, Preliminary Platfor
Maple Shores

Applicant: Chamberlain Capital, LLC.  
Location: 20430 Radisson Roadandfouradjacent unaddressed parcels, allonthe

southsideofHighway 7

Meeting Date:     August 22, 2022
Prepared by:    MarieDarling, Planning Director

Review Deadline: September 16, 2022

Attachments:    Engineers’ Memo datedAugust 17, 2022
Planning StaffMemorandum
Ordinance approving aRezoning
Resolution approving aPUD Concept/Development Stage Plan
Resolution approving aPreliminary Plat

Background:  Seeattached memorandum fordetailed background onthisitemaswellasthe
report foritem5Aonthisagenda.     

Theapplicant proposes tosubdivide thesubject properties into7lotsfornewsingleandtwo- 
family homes andoneopenspaceoutlot.  Thisproposal includes thefollowing requests:   

Arezoning fromR-1AtoPlanned UnitDevelopment (PUD)  
stndAPUDconcept anddevelopment plan (the1 and2 stepsofthethree-stepprocess)  

stApreliminary plat (the1 of2stepsinthesubdivision process)  

AttheirAugust 2, 2022meeting, thePlanning Commission votedunanimously torecommend
approval oftheitem, subject totheconditions listed inthestaff report.    

Theyalsorequested thattheCouncil consider theoptionofwhether ornottorequire allthe
ashtreestoberemoved withdevelopment.  Staffaddressed thisconcern withthepublic
testimony provided.  Thiswould result inabout25additional treesremoved.    

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residentsqualitypublicservices, a
healthyenvironment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsoundfinancial
management througheffective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.   

S:\\Planning\\Planning Files\\Applications\\2022 Cases\\Maple Shores20430 Radisson Road\\CAFMemo.docx



AttheirAugust16, 2022meeting, theParks Commission considered thepark impact ofthe
project andrecommended feesinlieuoflanddedication andprivate ownership oftheopen
spaceoutlot.     

Public Testimony:  Noticeoftheapplication waspublished intheofficial newspaper atleast
10daysprior tobothpublic hearings (August 2, 2022atthePlanning Commission andAugust
22, 2022attheCityCouncil) andmailed notice wassenttoallproperty owners within 750
feetofthesubject property. Theapplicant heldaneighborhood meeting prior tosubmission.    

Financial orBudget Considerations:  Theapplication feescover thecostofprocessing the
request.  Developments arerequired topayfeesforutility connections andparkdedication.    

Recommendation / Action Requested: StaffandthePlanning Commission recommend
approval oftherequest foraRezoning toPUD, aPUDconcept anddevelopment stage plan
andapreliminary platforMapleShores onproperty located at20430Radisson Roadandthe
fouradjacent vacant parcels, subject tothefindings andconditions intheattached
ordinance/ resolutions.  

Motion requires a3/5majority toadopt.  

Should theCityCouncil determine another course ofaction ismoreappropriate, staff
recommend referring theitembacktostaff todraft theappropriate findings-of-fact.  

NextStepsandTimelines:  IftheCityCouncil approves therequest, theapplicant would need
tosubmit aPUDfinalstageplanandfinalplatapplication aswellbeginacquiring other
jurisdictions approvals.  



MEMORANDUM

Date: August17, 2022

To: Marie Darling, Planning Director

From: MattBauman, PE, Andrew Budde, PE

Subject: 20430 Radisson Road/Maple Shores Revised Preliminary Plat
CityofShorewood
Project No.: 0C1.123603

Thefollowing documents were submitted forreview ofcompliance Local
Surface Water Management Planand Engineering Standards: 

Certificate ofSurvey dated12/19/2021
CivilPlansrevised dated6/29/2022
Stormwater Drainage Reportrevised dated6/29/2022
Landscape Planrevised dated6/30/2022
Response letter toBolton & Menk5/26/2022comments

This review only included thedocuments listed above, primarily dealing withgrading, modelling,and
stormwater management. 

Notes: 
1.Public infrastructure shallbeconstructed inaccordance withCityStandard Details and

Specifications. 
2.Theproperty mustmeet theCityofShorewood Surface Water Management PlanRegulations

Section 5.3) 
3.Fulldetailed reviewofdrainage report notcompleted atthistime, butwillbeanalyzed inmore

detail oncesoilborings obtained. Current stormwater management planappears tomeetCity
standards. 

4.ListNWL Lake Como onGrading andUtility Sheets.   
a.Notedthat DNRandWatershed donothave this information currently. 

5.Thewatermain casing onthesouthendterminates under theroadway.  Have thecasingterminate
closer totheMnDOT ROW sothatifthelineneeds tobereplaced inthefuture thereis some
green space towork ininstead oftearing upthestreet.   

6.U
7. 

uptheentrance.   
8.Consider movingSTMH 7closer tothetoeoftheslope andnearpipestation 1+50sothatitcan

capture water fromtheslopeand reduce erosion concerns.   
9.STMH 6should haveaslight bermonthedown slope sidetohelp ensure itcaptions water into

thepipe instead ofbypassing andcausing erosion.   

3(7$ 4® /³§¤±²3§®±¤²2¤µ¨²¤£ 0±¤«¨¬¨0«2¤µ¨¤¶ ,¤³³¤±



Name:20430RadissonRoad/MapleShores
Date: August17, 2022
Page:2

10.Thetreesbythewatermain connection onthenorth sideofTH7mayhaveroot impacts.  If, ash
weshould include themforremoval.  

11.Retaining wall is18feet tallandatthispointnotsurehowdeep thereinforcement would beuntil
itsdesigned.  That reinforcement maybevery andmaynotbe
abletobereplaced without demoing (orsignificant shoring) ofthebuildings.   

12.Confirm iftheWMOwill allowadditional trees beplanted inthewetland buffer infrontofthe
retaining wall tohelpprovide screening?  

Prior comments notedtobeaddressed withFinalPlat: 
1.Provide soilboring dataoncecompleted andupdated stormwater drainage report asrequired.   
2.Provide groundwater dataandverify that thelowfloorelevations are: 

a.4.0feetabove groundwater elevations inthearea. 
b.2.0feetabove known historic highgroundwater elevations. 
c.1.0feetabove the100-yearhighwater elevation. 

3.Verify that there isatleast3.0feetofseparation from thebottom oftheinfiltration basin tothe
groundwater elevation.  

4.Owners ofprivate stormwater facilities shall enter intoanagreement with theCitydescribing
responsibility forthelong-termoperation andmaintenance ofthestormwater facilities andshall
beexecuted andrecorded with thefinalplat.  Anoperations andmaintenance planforthe
proposed stormwater system should beincluded with future submittals. 

5. 
6.Ensure adequate fallprotection fortheretaining walls. 
7.Irrigation mains arenotallowed inCityRightofWaywithout anencroachmentagreement and

subject totheapproval oftheCityEngineer. 
8.Developer shallobtain allpermits before approval offinalplat.  Specific permits toconsider early

intheprocess include: 
a.Astormwater management anderosion andsediment control permit willberequired with

Minnehaha Creek Watershed District. 
b.Apermit willberequired withMnDOT forUtility Crossing intherightofway. 































































ExhibitD - Certificate ofSurvey































ExhibitG - Preliminary ArchPlans 1of3NbqmfTipsft

MblfDpnpTjef

Cvjmejoh2Voju2MpxfsMfwfmCvjmejoh2Voju3MpxfsMfwfmCvjmejoh2Voju2NbjoNbjoMfwfmCvjmejohCvjmejoh2Voju3NbjoMfwfm
Cvjmejoh3Voju4MpxfsMfwfmCvjmejoh3Voju5MpxfsMfwfmCvjmejoh3Voju4NbjoNbjoMfwfmCvjmejohCvjmejoh3Voju5NbjoMfwfm

Cvjmejoh3
Cvjmejoh2

Cvjmejoh4



ExhibitG - Preliminary ArchPlans 2of3Tipsft

MblfMblfMblfDpnpTjef

Cvjmejoh4Voju6NbjoMfwfm Cvjmejoh4Voju6NbjoMfwfm

Cvjmejoh4



ExhibitG - Preliminary ArchPlans 3of3NbqmfTipsft

TupsnQpoeTjef

Cvjmejoh5Voju8VqqfsMfwfmCvjmejohCvjmejoh5Voju8NbjoMfwfmCvjmejoh5Voju7VqqfsMfwfmCvjmejoh5Voju7NbjoMfwfm
Cvjmejoh6Voju: VqqfsMfwfmCvjmejohCvjmejoh6Voju: NbjoMfwfmCvjmejoh6Voju9VqqfsMfwfmCvjmejoh6Voju9NbjoMfwfm

Cvjmejoh6
Cvjmejoh5



CITY OF SHOREWOOD
COUNTY OFHENNEPIN
STATE OF MINNESOTA

ORDINANCE NO. 591

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 1201.09SUBD. 2.   
OFTHE SHOREWOOD ZONING CODE – THE SHOREWOOD ZONING MAP

MAPLE SHORES PUD)  

Section1.  Section 1201.09Subd. 2. oftheShorewood CityCodeishereby amended toinclude
theproperty described asfollows intothePUD (Planned UnitDevelopment) zoning district:  

Lot24, Radisson InnAddition, andTractsA, B, C, D, H, I, J, andK, Registered Land
SurveyNo730, allinHennepin County, Minnesota;  

Section2.  FailureoftheDeveloper, itssuccessors andassigns tocomply withtheconditions of
approval forthePUDtobecalled “MapleShores PUD”, mayresult inthere-zoning oftheproperty
backtoR-1A, Single-Family Residential.  

Section3.  ThattheZoning Administrator ishereby authorized torevise theZoning Mapofthe
CityofShorewood toinclude theproperty inthePUD., Planned UnitDevelopment zoning district.  

Section4.  ThatthisOrdinance shallbeinfullforceandeffectuponpublishing intheOfficial
Newspaper oftheCityofShorewood.  

ndADOPTED BYTHE CITY COUNCIL OFTHE CITY OF SHOREWOOD this22 dayofAugust,  
2022.  

Jennifer Labadie, Mayor
ATTEST:  

Sandie Thone, City Clerk



RESOLUTION 22-078

CITY OF SHOREWOOD
COUNTY OFHENNEPIN
STATE OF MINNESOTA

ARESOLUTION APPROVING APUD CONCEPT AND DEVELOPMENT STAGE PLAN
FOR MAPLE SHORES PUD TOBELOCATED ON PROPERTY AT20430 RADISSON ROAD

AND FOUR ADJACENT VACANT PROPERTIES

WHEREAS, Chamberlain Capital, LLC (the “Applicant”), hassubmitted arequest foraPUD
Concept andDevelopment StagePlanforadevelopment tobecalled “MapleShores PUD”  (the
Request”) fortheproperty legallydescribed as:  

Lot24, Radisson InnAddition, andTractsA, B, C, D, H, I, J, andK, Registered Land
SurveyNo730, allinHennepin County, Minnesota; and

WHEREAS, theRequest hasbeensubmitted inthemanner required forthedevelopment of
landunder theShorewood CityCodeandunderChapter 462ofMinnesota Statutes, andall
proceedings havebeendulyconsistent thereunder; and,  

WHEREAS, saidRequest isconsistent withtheregulations andrequirements ofthelawsofthe
StateofMinnesota andtheCityCodeoftheCityofShorewood fortheapproval ofsucha
request.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED bytheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood thatthe
Request forthedevelopment ofsevensingleandtwo-familyhomes tobecalled “Maple Shores
PUD”, ishereby approved, subject tothefollowing conditions:  

1. ThePUDConcept andDevelopment Stage Planisapproved contingent ontheapproval of
Ordinance 591approving arezoning.  

2. ThePUDConcept andDevelopment StagePlanisapproved toallowseven, oneandtwo- 
story, singleandtwo-familyhomesaspermitted usesaccording totheplansandmaterials
received March22and23, May19, June15and30, 2022.  

3. Thepermitted accessory useswithin thedevelopment shallbeasallowed intheR-1D
zoning district, except thatthefollowing areprohibited:  thestorage orparkingof
recreational vehiclesorequipment outside theattached garage; detached accessory
buildings, including butnotlimited totoolsheds, greenhouses, conservatories, andthelike;  
andnogaragespacemayberented tootherpersons.    

4. Thedevelopment standards shallconsistofthefollowing:  
a. Minimum setbacks fromtheproperty linesshallbeasfollows:   

1) FromtheRadisson Roadright-of-way:  35feet
2) FromtheHighway7right-of-way: 50feet
3) Fromthecurboftheprivate street tothegarage doors:  20feet
4) Fromtheinterior sideproperty lines: 10feet
5) Fromthewetland buffers: 15feet
6) Nodwelling unitmayextend beyond theunitlotlinesintothecommon areaandthe

HOAdocuments shallbedrafted toreflect therestriction.  
b. Height:  Nodwelling shallexceed 35feetorasshownontheplanssubmitted May19,  

2022.  
c. TheHOAdocuments shall includearequirement thataminimum oftwospaces inthe

garage shallbereserved forparkingofpersonal vehicles.  



5. Modelhome:  Onemodelhomewithasalesofficeshallbepermitted subject tothe
following:  
a. Themodelhome/salesoffice isalloweduntilpermits areissued forallfourstructures.   

Atthatpoint, itmustbeconverted backtoahomeandtheparking arearemoved.  
b. Anoff-streetparking areawithagravelorasphalt surface shallbeconstructed witha

pathway leading tothemodelhome, withonehandicapped accessible space.  
c. Anylighting forthemodelhomeshallbelimitedbythelighting regulations inChapter

1201.03Subd. 2. v. andshallbeturnedoffonehouraftertherealestate officecloses
or8p.m., whichever isearlier.  

d. Temporary signage forthemodel islimitedtoacombined totalof30square feetinno
morethantwosigns.  

e. Ahandicapped accessible port-a-pottyshallbeprovided adjacent othemodelhome
unlesshandicapped accessible facilties areprovided withinehunit.  

f. Noflags (except theUSflag) pennants, banners orstreamers shallbeinstalled onthe
property.  

g. Themodelhome permit shallnotbeissueduntil theutilityworkiscomplete andthe
curbsandaggregate baseofthestreet isconstructed.    

6. TheApplicant’sproposal toexport5,840cubicyardsoffillisapproved subject tothe
following:    
a. TheApplicant shallsubmitageotechnical report fromalicensed professional engineer

priortoissuance ofanypermits thatindicates thatthesoilspresent onthesiteandas
brought inareadequate tosupport theconstruction ofthehomesandotherstructures.    

b. TheApplicant shallrestorealldisturbed portions oftheproperty withslopesnosteeper
than3:1.  

c. TheApplicant shall installadouble rowofsiltfencetoprotect thewetlands andmust
showthedouble fencing ontheplans.  

d. TheApplicant shall restore ground coverwithin sevendaysaftergrading iscompleted.  
e. TheApplicant shallsubmitaconstruction management plan.    
f. ThetruckrouteshallbefromOldMarketRoadviaRadisson Road tothesite, with

notruck trafficwestbound onRadisson Road.     

7. Asubdivision signshallbepermitted withthisdevelopment subject tothelimitations in
1201.03Subd. 11e. (1) (a) andshallbeatleast fivefeetfrompublic rights-of-way.  

8. Therequired lotareasandwidths foreachresidential property shallbeasshownand
approved onthefinalplat.  

9. Theapproval forthePUDDevelopment StagePlanshallexpire insixmonths fromthedate
ofapproval iftheApplicant hasnotsubmitted acomplete application forPUDFinalPlan,  
except thattheApplicant mayrequest anextension totheapproval subject tothe
requirements ofSection 1201.25Subd. 6. c. (5).    

2



ADOPTEDBYTHECITYCOUNCILOFTHECITYOFSHOREWOODMinnesotaon
August 22, 2022.  

Jennifer Labadie, Mayor
ATTEST:  

Sandie Thone, City Clerk

3



RESOLUTION 22-079

CITY OF SHOREWOOD
COUNTY OFHENNEPIN
STATE OF MINNESOTA

ARESOLUTION APPROVING APRELIMINARY PLAT
FOR MAPLE SHORES FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT20430 RADISSON

AND FOUR ADJACENT VACANT PROPERTIES

WHEREAS, Chamberlain Capital, LLC. (the “Applicant”), hassubmitted arequest fora
preliminary platunder theShorewood CityCodeandunderChapter 462ofMinnesota Statutes ;  
and

WHEREAS, theproperty islegallydescribed as:  

Lot24, Radisson InnAddition, andTractsA, B, C, D, H, I, J, andK, Registered Land
Survey No730, allinHennepin County, Minnesota; and

WHEREAS, therequest forthepreliminary plathasbeensubmitted inthemanner required for
theplatting oflandandthereviewofvariances under theShorewood CityCodeandunder
Chapter 462ofMinnesota Statutes, andallproceedings havebeendulyconsistent thereunder;  
and,  

WHEREAS, saidpreliminary platisconsistent withtheShorewood Comprehensive Planand
theregulations andrequirements ofthelawsoftheStateofMinnesota andtheCityCodeofthe
CityofShorewood, subject totheconditions listedherein.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED bytheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood thatthe
preliminary plattobecalled “MapleShores” ishereby approved, subject tothefollowing
conditions:  
1. Thepreliminary platisapproved contingent ontheapproval ofOrdinance 591approving a

rezoning andResolution 22-078approving aPUDConcept andDevelopment StagePlanfor
MapleShores.  

2. Thepreliminary platforseven lotsforsingleandtwo-familyhomes andanoutlot isapproved
according totheplansandmaterials received March22and23, May19, June15and30,  
2022.  

3. Withthefinalplatapplication, theApplicant shallsubmitallinformation required forthePUD
finalplan/finalplatinthezoningandsubdivision regulations, aswellasthefollowing,  
consistent withCityCode, andtheengineering guidelines/specifications:  
a. Thehomeowner association (HOA) documents, whichmust include disclosures onthe

maximum impervious surface coverage perlotandlanguage addressing maintenance of
thewetland buffersandsignage, stormwater features, subdivision monument signage
andallothercommon elements, aswellasprohibitions onaccessory buildings, storage
ofrecreation vehiclesorequipment outside thehomeandtherequirement thattwo
parking spaces inthegaragemustbereserved forpassenger vehicles.  

b. Thelegaldescriptions fortheconservation easements (atthedistance requiredbythe
DNR) andthemaintenance agreement.  Thelegaldescriptions must include theentirety
oftheparcelwithin thelake, wetland andthefartherextentofeither thecity’sor
MCWD’swetland buffer.  

c. Anevaluation completed byacertified arboristofthequestionable ashtreesnotedon
theinventory withdocumentation ofanyashborerdisease.  



d. Theconstruction management planincluding, butnotlimited to: thehaulroute forthe
material tobeexported, contractor parking, howdeliveries willbemadewithout blocking
publicstreets, wherestorageofmaterials willoccuronsite, hoursofconstruction,  
reference theerosioncontrol planandhowoftenstreets willbeswept. Theoff-street
parking areamustbeavailable until thepermit forthelaststructure isissued. Thecity
reserves therighttoprohibit construction parkingontheprivate drivetoensure
adequate accessofemergency vehicles.    

e. Theassignment ofimpervious surface coverage foreachlotnottoexceed 25percent for
thetotaldevelopment orthedesignofthestormwatermanagement planforthe
subdivision, whichever isless.  

f. Revised plansconsistent withtheEngineer’sMemo datedAugust17, 2022; theDNR’s
memodatedJuly17, 2022; theExcelsior FireMarshalls comments datedJuly13, 2022;  
andasfollows:  
1) Revise thetreepreservation plantoshowthelocationoftreepreservation fencing

andindicate removal oftrees165and166located intheright-of-way.  Tobe
considered saved, noactivity ispermitted within thedriplineoftree.    

2) Revise thelandscaping planto: 1) addadditional treesinthecommon areaswhere
theywouldn’tobstruct thestormwaterandwouldobscure off-sitevisibility ofthe
retaining wall; 2) provide aplantschedule withthesizeofalltreesatplanting
consistent withthetreepreservation policy; 3) indicate theground coverproposed
throughout thedevelopment andthedisturbed portionsofthepublic right-of-way;  
and4) anyproposed plantings thatwouldbeusedtoreestablish thedisturbed
portions ofwetlandbuffers, ifapplicable.   

3) Revise thegradingplantoidentify: a) thelocation ofwetland buffermonuments at
eachlotlineandasthebufferchanges direction andb) whichbuffer monuments
wouldbeused, theCity’sorthewatershed’s.  

4. Priortoreleaseofthesubdivision forrecording, theApplicant shallsubmit thefollowing:  
a. Executed conservation easements, executed development andmaintenance

agreements, financial guarantees asrequired bythedevelopment agreement, andthe
finaldraftoftheHOAdocuments.  

b. Payment offeesforlocalsanitary seweraccess, watermain connection, andpark
dedication intheamounts required atthetimeoffinalplatapproval.  

c. Anyrequired permits fromotheragencies.  

5. Priortoissuance ofanybuilding permits, theApplicant shallsubmitorcomplete the
following:  
a. Theapplicant shallsubmitasoils/geotechnical report fromalicensed professional

engineer permits thatindicates thesoilspresent onthesiteandbrought inareadequate
tosupport theconstruction ofthebuildings andother improvements.    

b. Theapplicant shallsubmit recorded copiesofalldocuments, suchastheplat,  
development agreement, maintenance agreement, separate easements, HOA
documents, etc.    

6. Thepreliminary platshallexpire in180daysiftheApplicant hasnotsubmitted acomplete
application forfinalplat.  TheApplicant mayrequestanextension totheapproval subject to
therequirements ofSection 1202.03Subd. 2. f. (3).    

2



ADOPTED BYTHE CITY COUNCIL OFTHE CITY OF SHOREWOOD this22nddayofAugust,  
2022.  

Jennifer Labadie, Mayor
ATTEST:  

Sandie Thone, City Clerk

3



7C

MEETING TYPE
RegularMeetingCityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title / Subject:   JointReviewofCooperative HousingProject
Applicant: LifestyleCommunities
Location: 24250and24320Smithtown Road

MeetingDate:     August22, 2022
Preparedby:    MarieDarling, PlanningDirector
Reviewedby:  InterimCityAdministrator ShukleandCityAttorneyJaredShepherd

TonkaBayCityAdministrator DanTolsma

Attachments:     May3, 2022Planning Memorandum
Applicants’ Narrative

Background:   

SeeMay3, 2022PlanningMemorandum fordetailedbackground onthepolicyissuesrelatedtothis
potentialdevelopment.    

Request forDirection:    

Thepropertyownerseekstomoveforwardonthisproposed development.  Becausethesitestraddles
thecityboundarywithTonkaBay, bothcitieswouldneedtobeinvolved.  Staffisrequesting direction
fromCouncil todetermine howmuchinvolvement byeachcitytheyprefer.    

WorkingwiththeTonkaBaystaff, staffhaveflushedoutthreeoptionsforaninitialcourseofaction
foreachoftheCouncils toconsider.  Twowouldrequireajointpowersagreement:  

Option1 (Boundary Alteration):  Movethecityboundaryandconsolidate thetwoparcels inoneof
thetwocitieswithaJointPowersAgreement todetermine howthetwocitieswillsharethecostsand
benefitsoftheprojectandwhichcitywouldhavezoningandpermitting authority inperpetuity.    
Advantages:  Noissueswithaproperty line/cityboundary runningthroughthebuilding.  Zoningand
permitting wouldbereviewed throughonlyonecity.    
Disadvantages:  Comprehensive Planamendments forbothcitiesforbothlanduseandthealteration
oftheboundaries.  Additional process throughthestatetoalterthemunicipal boundary.  Ifthecity
thatreviewstheproposaldeniestheapplication, whathappenstotheparcel?  Dothecitiesadjustthe
linebacktotheoriginal location?    
Example:  TheWatersdevelopment onlandthatwasoriginally inShorewood andExcelsior.  

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residentsqualitypublicservices, a
healthyenvironment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsoundfinancial
management througheffective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.   

S:\\Planning\\Planning Files\\Applications\\2022 Cases\\24250 Smithtown Road Cooperative Sketch\\CAFAugust 22, 2022.docx



Option2 (Delegated Authority):  Keepthecityboundaryasis, withaJointPowersAgreement
determining whichcityhaszoningandpermitting authorityovertheprojectandwithadetermination
onhowthetwocitieswouldsharethecostsandbenefitsoftheproject.  
Advantages:  Zoningandpermittingwouldbereviewed throughonecity.  Comprehensive Plan
Amendments forbothcitiesforthelandusechanges only.  
Disadvantages:  Foreseeable issueswithdualjurisdiction wouldneedtoberesolved throughjoint
powersagreement andtitlerestrictions toprevent saleofeitherparcelwithout theother.  Thecity
thatacceptsdelegation alsoacceptsresponsibility forthedecision andbyimplication thepotential
liability.  
Example:  ThishasnotbeentriedinShorewood previously andstaffwouldbeworkingwithexamples
inothercommunities (GoldenValley/St. LouisPark) toseehowtheyaccomplished thisagreement
withtheirJPA.    

Option3 (SeparateDecision-making):  Keepthecityboundary asis, witheachCityretaining
jurisdiction forzoningandpermitting overitsownparcel.   Costsandbenefitswouldnotbeshared
andeachcitywouldserveutilitiesfortheirrespective parcel.  Although thisislistedasanoptionin
theory, staffwouldnotrecommend thisoptionasitwouldnotprovideafunctional procedure long- 
term.    
Advantages:  Noupfrontnegotiations betweenthecities.  
Disadvantages:  Twoseparate reviewprocesses throughthetwocitieswitheachhavingitsown
separateconditions couldbeoverwhelming andcreateaprocesswherethedeveloper couldnot
succeed.  ThiswouldalsoresultinPerpetual negotiations betweenthepropertyownersandthetwo
cities.  Thesitewouldbeachallenge forcodeenforcement inthefutureasthecodesaredifferent,  
andsomeissueswouldclearlyapplytobothproperties.    

Recommendation / ActionRequested:    

Staffrecommend eitheroption1or2andrequestCouncil direction.    

Providing directionrequiresasimplemajority.  

NextStepsandTimelines:   

WhentheCityCouncilprovides direction, staffwouldnotifyTonkaBaystaffandtheapplicantoftheir
decision.  













Memorandum

To: TonkaBayCityCouncil/Shorewood CityCouncil

From: JacobW. Steen, LarkinHoffman

Date: August9, 2022

Re: Lifestyle Communities: ArtessaTonkawood

Lifestyle Communities, LLC (“Lifestyle”) isproposing todevelop thecontiguous propertiesat
24320and24250Smithtown Road (collectively, the “Property”) asanactiveadultcooperative
with56owner-occupied units (“Project”).  Thecombined Property isapproximately 2.58acres
andstraddles themunicipal boundaries oftheCityofTonkaBay (1.12ac) andtheCityof
Shorewood (1.46ac).   

Inordertoeliminate conflicts between redundant cityprocesses, Lifestyle isrequesting thatthe
citiesproceed underajointpowersagreement (JPA) underwhichtheyjointlyexercise their
collective powersgoverning development oftheProperty.  TheJPAwillrequirebothcity
councils toapproveaJPAagreement thatoutlines responsibilities fortheadministration ofthe
Project.  DuetotheCityofShorewood’sadministrative andstaffcapacity, werecommend that
theCityofShorewood administer thejointzoningpowers undertheagreement, asfollows: 

JointAdministration ofthePowers (CityofShorewood): 
Landusereview, preparation ofastaffreport, andpublichearings
Building permitandconstruction codereview
Building andfireinspections
Collecting anddistributing fees
Trafficandpublicworksreview

Thiswillalloweachcitytoretainitsownzoningandtaxingauthority, whileeliminating
redundancies andreducetheburdenonstaff.  Eachcitywouldstillseparately administer the
following powers: 

Separate Administration (BothCities): 
Rezoning andlanduseapprovals (requiresbothcitiestoact) 
PublicWorks – Utilitiesreview (ifapplicable) 
Taxationandassessments (basedonapro-rataformula) 
Reviewofcrosseasements overmunicipal boundary

4858-2862-2371, v. 2



CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title/Subject:   Primary Election and Candidate Filing Update 10(A)1Meeting Date:  Monday, August22, 2022
MEETINGTYPEPrepared by:   Sandie Thone, CityClerk/HRDirector
RegularMeetingReviewed by:   Brenda Pricco, Deputy CityClerk

August 9, 2022 Primary Election Update:  ThePrimary ElectionwasheldonAugust9, 2022
atthreeprecincts intheCityofShorewood.  TheCityofShorewood currently hasthefollowing
fourprecincts buttheprecinct located inCathcart Park, Carver County, hasnoresidents.    

ndPrecinct1: Minnewashta Churchat26710West62 Street
Precinct 2: Shorewood Community andEventCenterat5735CountryClubRoad
Precinct 3: Excelsior Covenant Churchat19955 Excelsior Blvd
Precinct 4: (Cathcart Park - Carver County)  

Voters registered at7:00a.m. thedayofthePrimary were asfollows:  
Precinct1:   1929Registered Voters
Precinct2:  2735Registered Voters
Precinct3:  1290Registered Voters
Total:  5954Registered Voters7:00a.m. ElectionDay ( 5707in2020Primary)  
Voters Voting onElection Day inShorewood
Precinct1:   332Voters
Precinct2:  449Voters
Precinct3:  241Voters
Total:  1022VotersvotedonElection Day   ( 897Voters2020Primary)  
Voters Voting byAbsentee Ballot (Mail-Inand In-Person)  
Total:  155VotersvotedAbsentee    ( 922Voters in2020Primary)   
Total Voter Turnout Election Day, In-Person and Absentee
Total:  1177Voters inthePrimary    ( 1819Voters in2020Primary)  
Candidates Filing forCity Council:  Fourcandidates filedfortwo (2) CityCouncil seats that
willbeontheballot inNovember.  Thefollowing candidates arerunning forcityofficeforaFour- 
YearTerm (January 2023through December 2026) (inalphabetical order):  
CityCouncil (2):   NatGorham

DustinMaddy
GuySanschagrin
SarahSt. Louis

Election Judges and Election Staff: Wehad42Election Judges fromthecommunity working
thePrimary Election, including manynewjudges!  Wearesograteful totheresidents inthe
community whocameforward toserve inthisyear’sPrimary.  Thenewjudges provided
excellent support androunded outsomegreat teams ineachofShorewood’sthreenewly
formed precincts asaresultofredistricting earlier thisyear.  Abigshoutoutfortheirdedication
andhardwork!  

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residentsqualitypublicservices, a
healthyenvironment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsoundfinancial
management througheffective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page 1



Behind theScenes andFrontandCenter! Undertaking elections isnosmall featandthere
aremanypeople working tirelessly behindthescenes andoutfronttothank.  Shorewood
Election Judges, Shorewood Elections Staff, PublicWorksemployees delivering voting
equipment andsettingupthedaybeforeandpickingupthedayafter.  Special Thanks tothe
following forallofyourhardwork, positiveattitude, andcommitment tothisyear’sPrimary
Election:  
CITY ELECTIONS STAFF PUBLIC WORKS STAFF
Brenda Pricco ChrisHeitz
NeliaCriswell TimKosek
Miechelle Norman RobHanson
JulieMoore BruceStark

MattVanLith

ELECTION JUDGES
PRECINCT 1 PRECINCT 2 PRECINCT 3

JaneStein LaurieSacchet KenHuskins
TenaBrandhorst AnneStraka-Leland Roxanne Martin
Dianne Aslesen AnniePaul Colleen Fischer
Catherine Demars KarenBoynton PhyllisSkinner
CourtQueen RalphBallard ElaineLove
Martha Snyder Elizabeth Grover Gordon Levack
Michael Kovalesky Kathleen Ostrom BillErickson
Pamela McDonald DaveRoy James Berdahl
JaniceZumsteg BrandiHoffman Charles Niles
CarolPaulsen Michael McDonald AnneRivers-Ditsch
KarenBurmeister LucyDeHaan Kathleen Miller-Liu
Joanne Schmid Maureen Sheehan-Fischer Patricia Kovalesky
Patricia Wolff Robert Page DavidSuggs
LauraDoten JulieZumsteg

Marilyn Gagne

Action Requested: Noaction – Informational Purposes Only

Connection toVision/Mission: Consistency inproviding residents qualitypublicservices, a
healthy environment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsound
financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.       



CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

10A.2
MEETINGTYPETitle / Subject:   FallPaper Shred EventScheduled

RegularMeetingMeeting Date:  August 22, 2022
Prepared by:   JulieMoore, Communications andRecycling Coordinator
Reviewed by:  Sandie Thone, HRDirector andCityClerk

Eachyear, thecityoffers twofreepaper shredding events inthecityhallparking lot. Thespring
eventwasverypopular in2022, withcloseto10,000pounds ofpaper shredded andrecycled.  
Thefallpaper shredding event isscheduled for9a.m. to12p.m., Saturday, October 22. This
daywaschosen because nofootball games arescheduled forBadger Park, which isnecessary
duetothetrafficandparking needs.  

Theeventwillbepromoted through thecitynewsletter, website, socialmedia, andConstant
Contact emails. Citystaffhasalready received several calls inquiring about thispopular event.   

Council members andcommissioners areinvited toattend andassistwithunloading carsfor
theevent.  

Action Requested: Noaction isrequired atthistime.  

Connection toVision/Mission: Consistency inproviding residents qualitypublic services, a
healthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsound
financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.       

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residentsqualitypublicservices, a
healthyenvironment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsoundfinancial
management througheffective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page 1


	Agenda
	2A Minutes 08-08-22 Reg Mtg
	2B Verified Claims
	2C 2022 Catch Basin & Culvert Project
	2D Beverly Drive & Cajed Lane Drainage Project
	2E Glen Road, Amlee Road, Manitou Lane Street Improvement Project
	2G Christmas Lake Association Agreement
	2H Security Upgrades to Christmas Lake Public Access
	2I 2000 Gallon Tanker Truck
	4B SLMPD Proposed Budget
	4C Excelsior Fire District Proposed Budget
	5A Maple Shores
	6A Park Comm Minutes
	7A Planning Comm Minutes
	7B Maple Shores
	7C Cooperative Housing Project
	10A.1 Primary Election and Candidate Filing Update
	10A.2 Fall Paper Shred



